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Grupo Catalana Occidente publishes its annual report for 2019, which was analysed by the audit committee and approved by the
Board of Directors at its meeting on 27 February 2020, and specifically in relation to the consolidated financial statements that
have been prepared on the basis of the European Union's international financial reporting standards and audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores S.L.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the reporting framework of the International Integrated Reporting Council
(IIRC), following the principles of reliability, relevance and comparability. The report gives a view of the environment, the busi-
ness model, the strategic approach and the future outlook of the Group, as well as the main risks to which it is exposed. It also
details the Group's activities in areas of governance and social, environmental and economic performance.

The scope of information that appears in the report corresponds to Grupo Catalana Occidente and the companies comprising it.
Business performance in recent years has been linked to corporate operations, which have been formally communicated to the
market through the National Securities Market Commission (CNMV) salient event notifications.

The non-financial and diversity information described in this report follows the requirements established in Act 11/2018, approved
on 28 December 2018. The scope and location in the report of the different indicators that make up the non-financial information
statement, using the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) reporting framework, is shown in section 7 of the management report. This
non-financial information has been verified by PricewaterhouseCoopers Auditores S.L.

The alternative performance measures (APM) used in this report correspond to the financial measures that are not defined or
detailed in the framework of the applicable financial information. Their definition, calculation and reformulation regarding the
financial statements can be consulted in the glossary section and the corporate website.

The report is available on the Group's website, in PDF format, interactive, and on the mobile app. Furthermore, there is an Excel
document with financial and non-financial information also available on the website. Finally, at the end of this report there is a
questionnaire for evaluation and suggestions for improvement.

In the event that you should require further information contact:
Analysts and investors +34 935 820 518 - analistas@catalanaoccidente.com


https://itunes.apple.com/es/app/grupo-catalana-occidente-financial/id635940888?l=en&mt=8
https://itunes.apple.com/es/app/grupo-catalana-occidente-financial/id635940888?l=en&mt=8
https://www.grupocatalanaoccidente.com
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Dear shareholders, associates and customers,

I would like to share the 2019 annual report with you, where
we present the main figures and milestones that have occurred
during the year, as well as other aspects of our strategy and
corporate culture.

2019 has been a relevant year for the Group because we have
maintained our profitable growth in an environment where
there has been a certain slowdown in the economy.

. In terms of results, in 2019 the Group reached a consolidated
Letter fI‘Om the Chalrman profit of €424.5 million, 9.9% more than the previous year, while
income rose by 4.7% to €4,547.7 million. These data reflect the
solid performance of the Group's two lines of activity: tradition-
"2019 has been a relevant year fOI’ the al business and credit insurance.

GTOUp because we have maintained our Precisely at the end of the year, we announced the creation of

pri oﬁtabl e growt " a new figure for the traditional business, which is the one we
developed through the companies Seguros Catalana Occidente,
Plus Ultra Seguros, Seguros Bilbao and NorteHispana Seguros.
The objective with this new figure is to reinforce the structure
of the organisation in this activity and, for this reason, Juan
Closa has been appointed General Manager of the Group's tra-
ditional business.

Also in the credit insurance business, David Capdevila was ap-
pointed as CEO of Atradius N.V,, succeeding Isidoro Unda. Isidoro
has ended his career after 12 years as the chief executive of the
credit insurance company. I would like to reiterate my gratitude
to Isidoro for his dedication, effort and commitment over the
years, as this has contributed to positioning Atradius as a lead-
ing international credit insurance company.

In addition, Iwould like to congratulate Juan and David on their
new appointments, two professionals who over the years have

Letter from the chairman | 4
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demonstrated their commitment and leadership in the Group.
They will undoubtedly be able to meet the existing challenges
successfully.

Continuing with the review of the main figures, it is worth noting
the improvement in the combined ratios of 90.4% in tradition-
al business and 73.4% in credit insurance. With regard to asset
strength, long term capital at market value stood at €4,584.8
million at the close of 2019, representing an increase of 17.3%.
All this reinforces our solvency position, which stands at 213%.

As far as investments are concerned, we are characterised by
a prudent and diversified management policy, with a stable
distribution of the investment portfolio. During 2019 we have
expanded our cash and deposit position and increased our ex-
posure to real estate assets with the purchase of several office
buildings, leased to third parties, located mainly in prime areas
of Madrid and Barcelona. This allows us to obtain attractive
returns despite the low interest rate financial environment we
are experiencing.

I would also like to point out that in February we closed the
purchase of Antares, a firm specialised in life, accident and
health insurance and which also operates in the groups of em-
ployees of the Telefénica Group. We are very satisfied with its
integration, as it allows us to be placed in the top 10 insurance
groups in the healthcare sector. The impact of its incorporation
to the balance sheet has been €1,113.1 million in assets. It also
means the expansion of 18,000 professionals to the medical
staff and the incorporation of 245,000 new customers.

Looking ahead to 2020, our objectives are focused on advanc-
ing the development of our distribution networks, technical
management of the insurance business and investments, in-
novation and new technologies. It is precisely these last two

I:In} Main figures (Result Centre)

05 Corporate governance
06 Commitment to stakeholders

07 Non-financial information statement
* Glossary

levers that are key to tackling one of the great challenges of the
insurance sector: customer focus.

Let me stress this point because this customer orientation is
increasingly linked to digitization and new technologies. We
understand digitization as a tool that must be used to approach
and adapt to the customer, to respond to their needs, but also
to improve our processes and be more efficient.

If we look beyond 2020, I believe that, as an insurance group,
we cannot ignore the challenges that longevityis going to pose
for people's well-being and quality of life. Other challenges will
be new trends in mobility and adaptation to new forms of con-
sumption driven by technology.

Of course, the insurance sector can and must play a very im-
portant role in meeting these new needs of citizens. Our voca-
tion must be, more than ever, to help people face the various
stages of their lives with security and well-being. Therefore, as
a group we are concerned with anticipating and properly un-
derstanding these needs and being prepared to continue play-
ing a key role in society.

We are part of a sector, the insurance sector, which is funda-
mental in the lives of citizens. This role has become more rel-
evant since the last economic crisis, when insurance companies
not only did not need public aid, but were able to grow in results
and improve their solvency margins, generating employment
and fulfilling all their commitments.

Thus, the vocation of Grupo Catalana Occidente is to create a
sound business and generate sustainable social value. Social
value is the result of focusing our activity not only on obtaining
sound results but also on favouring the well-being of the people

 Contact and calendar 2020
* Feedback

that our stakeholders and society as a whole form part of.

In this sense, the social action of the corporate responsibility
of the Catalana Occidente Group is channelled through the work
of the Fundacién Jesus Serra, which is structured around five
areas: business and teaching, social action, promotion of the
arts, sport and research.

I would not like to end without thanking you again for your
trust and support, as well as that of our intermediaries. All of
us at Grupo Catalana Occidente work to be a growing, solvent
and innovative organisation, even in a complex and changing
environment. I invite you to continue supporting value creation
in the medium and long term.

José M.? Serra
Chairman

Letter from the chairman | 5
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Annual panorama

Objectives reached

The Group maintains its
positive performance with
growth in turnover and results,
adapting to social and
environmental changes.

< Annual panorama / Objectives reached | 6 >
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International dimension

SthLargest

insurance
group in Spain

ZNdlaI‘gESt 50"‘ countries

largest credit insurance
group in the world

1,600 offices

p Spain
66.7%

P> Centraland Northern Europe
11.1%

Western Europe
12.6%

Southern Europe
3.3%

p> Asia and rest of the
world 3.3%

P America
31%

Diversification
by countries
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Main figures

Volume
and distribution
of the business

[¢h

Combined
ratio

()
(b

Recurring
result

€424.5 million

+9.9%

0O O
RNl
Over -|-|-

4 million

customers

Over

€4,034 million

transferred to the company

07 Non-financial information statement
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€4,547.7 million

+4.7%

57.4% Traditional business
42.6% Credit insurance business

90.4% Traditional business
73.4% Credit insurance business

Remuneration
for the shareholder

€105.9 million

+7.3%

00000

over |IILILIL
7,400

employees

Long-term capital
Market value

€4 584 .8 million

+17.3%

+ Contact and calendar 2020

@)
(&VA]
Insurance specialist

Over 150 years of experience.
Complete offer.
Sustainable and socially responsible model.

a 0
Wil
Solid financial structure

Listed on the stock exchange.
“A”" Rating.
Stable, committed shareholders.

S

Closeness - global presence

Approximately 18,000 intermediaries.
Over 7,400 employees.

1,600 offices.

50 countries.

(N}

Technical rigour

Excellent non-life combined ratio

Strict cost control

Diversified and prudent investment port-
folio.

Annual panorama / Objectives reached |7
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1 1 % chg.
Ma]'n f]'gures Most significant data 2017 2018 2019 18-1g9 Report location
A | Growth
. . . Turnover 4,254.3 4,345.2 4,5477 4.7% Page 12
'.rhe Group oat?llzlslsg;:nd I'etSl.lil:tS !n zi(l)llg, with - Traditional business 2,516.1 2,541.2 2,612.4 2.8% Page 19
Improvement in the three strategic priars. - Credit insurance business 1,738.2 1,804.0 1,9353 73% Page 22
B | Profitability
Growth Consolidated result 3573 386.4 4245 9.9% Page 12
e Increase of 4.7% in business turnover, reaching €4,547.7 mil ’ Tradn.tu.)nal business ) 1791 1957 cled 8.4% Poge19
lion. - Credit insurance business 190.0 2009 238.2 18.6% Page 22
- Non-recurring -11.8 -10.2 -25.8 Page 24
* Increase in number of customers and satisfaction index. Attributed result 3254 3521 385.9 9.6% Page 12
* Acquisition agreement for Antares, gaining presence in the Combined traditional business ratio 91.4% 91.2% 90.4% Page 19
healthcare sector. Combined ratio credit insurance 75.2% 75.5% 73.4% Page 23
Profitability Dividend 078 0.82 0.88 7.3% Page 15
* Increase of 9.9% in the consolidated profit, reaching €424.5 Pay-out 28.4% 28.2% 27.4% Page 15
million. Share price 369 326 31.2 Page 16
. ) PER 13.6 111 97 Page 16
* Improvement of recurring results: ROE 12 8% 12 3% 11.1% page 16
¢ Traditional business, at €212.1 million, +8.4%. C | solvency
* Credit insurance business, at €£238.2 million, +18.6%. Long-term capital at market value 37555 39086 4,584.8 17.3% Page 30
: Exceneon_t combined ratio: , Technical Provisions 94252 95677 10,6521 11.3% Page 27
* 90.4% in traditional business (non-life) (-0.9 p.p.). Funds under management 11,9882 123235 143773 16.7% Page 28
* 73.4% in the credit insurance business (-2.1 p.p.). Solvency Ratio I 507% 5075 139, page 32
¢ Increase of 7.3% in shareholder remuneration.
% Debt 5.7% 5.0% 4.8% Page 31
Solvency Interest coverage 36.7 374 379 Page 31
* A M.Best maintains the rating of the main operating entities| D | Non-financial data
both in traditional business and credit insurance, at "A" with Number of employees** 7,352 7,389 7,440 0.7% Page 49
astable outlook, and Moody's of the credit insurance entities % Permanent contracts 96.8% 96.6% 96.6% Page 49
at "A2" with a stable outlook Number of offices 1,648 1,649 1,612 -2.2% Page 52
* The estimated Solvency II ratio at the close of 2019 for the Number of mediators traditional business 18,514 17,801 17,327 2.7% Page 52
Group is 213%. Level of promotion suggested (LPS) Traditional business 31.7% 34.1% 39.6% Page 51
* 2019 Data with transition of technical provisions and with partial internal model. Pending audit
*** Considered in the concept of full time (FTE)

I:In} Main figures (Result Centre)

&) Excel - Main figures

Annual panorama / Objectives reached | 8
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Grupo Catalana Occidente
in 2019

Avyear of growth and consolidation

The Group has increased turnover,
profit and capital with respect to the
previous year

+ Contact and calendar 2020

* Feedback

Grupo Catalana Occidente in 2019 / A year of growth and consolidation | 9
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Macroeconomic environment

United States GDP +2.3% GDP 2019 (+2.9%)

e Trade disputes smoothed out by agreements
reached with China

e Deceleration of growth.

Solid private consumption.

Contraction of investment and exports.

Full employment (3.7% unemployment)

Inflation is contained and close to the 2% target.

e Electionsin 2020.

South America 0.1% GDP 2019 (+1.1%)

e (Context of low economic dynamism.

e Reduced private investment.

e Mass demonstrations in Chile, Colombia
and Ecuador.

e General elections in Argentina, Bolivia
and Uruguay.

05 Corporate governance
06 Commitment to stakeholders

07 Non-financial information statement

* Glossary

+ Contact and calendar 2020
* Feedback

Growth of 2.9% in 2019 Widespread impairment of economic indicators.

Eurozone GDP +1.2% 2019 (+1.9%)

e Deceleration impacted by lower exports to
the UK and the motor sector.

e Expansive monetary policy

e Unemployment of 7.7%

e 1.2% inflation.

Spain GDP +2.0% 2019 (2.4%)

e Deceleration, yet growth
higher than the European average.

e Increase in domestic demand supported by
consumption.

e Improvement of the public deficit.

e 13.9% Unemployment

e 0.7% inflation.

United Kingdom GDP +1.3% 2019e (+1.3%)

e Brexit confirmation on 31 January 2020

Depreciation of the pound against the euro.

e Expected reduction in investment and increase
in the price of commercial transactions.

e 1.8% inflation.

© Asia Pacific + 5.6% GDP 2019 (+6.4%)
China + 6.1% GDP 2019 (+6.6%)

e Structural slowdown due to tariffs and trade
tensions, intensified by the impact of the
coronavirus

® Fiscal and monetary stimulus measures.

e Reduction of investment and imports.
Japan +1.0% GDP 2019 (+0.3%)

e Risk of economic slowdown.

e Strong private consumption and public

*Source: International Monetary Fund review of January 2020. Percentage of estimated GDP in 2019 vs. percentage of GDP in 2018 in brackets spending.

Fixed Income
e Central banks continue with their expansionary policy.

Variable income Raw materials/currencies

e Greater optimism in the financial markets: reduced volatility e Oil price recovery from 2018 lows
e The dollar loses its appeal as a safe-haven currency.

Interest rates lyear 3years 5years 10years End 2019 %Chg. End 2019 % Chg
Spain -0.5 -05 -01 0.5 Ibex35 9,549.2 +11.8% Oil ($/barrel) 66.0 +22.7%
Germany -0.6 -0.8 -0.5 -0.2 EuroStoxx Insurance 322.8 +24.4% Gold 15231 +16.0%
us. 16 16 17 19 Eurostoxx50 3,745.2 +24.8% €/% 112 -2.2%

Dow Jones 28,462.1 +23.0% €/£ 0.85 -6.0%

Source: Bloomberg. End 2019

< I;Injp Main figures (Result Centre)
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The insurance sector's turnover in Spain is
decreasing due to the fall in life premiums.

Insurance industry in Spain

Performance of insurance sector and ranking in Spain

Risk
4,863 (+3.0%)

@

Life -5.1%

Savings
22,663 (-6.6%)

Non-Life 3.4%

Cle

Motor Health Multi-risk Other

11,307 (+1.5%) 8,923 (+4.8%) 7,521 (+4.0%) 8,879 (+4.0%)
N PO 5.
ol i [l AN

: . Market

Ranking Group Position "~

VidaCaixa = 13.4%

Mapfre = 11.4%

Grupo Mutua Madrilefia 8.5%

Allianz 53%

Grupo Catalana Occidente N1 4.8%

Zurich N2 4.6%

Grupo Axa = 4.6%

Santalucia = 3.8%

Generali = 3.8%

Santander Seguros = 2.6%

Source: ICEA at the close of 2019

< I;Injp Main figures (Result Centre)
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The result of the technical account for the sector at the end of
2019 was 9.6% of retained premiums, 8 percentage points higher
than in the previous year, mainly due to the higher result of the
non-life business.

The result of the non-life technical account increased mainly
driven by multi-risk, which improved its combined ratio by 3.4
percentage points to 94.0% due to the improvement in the ac-
cident rate.

Stability in the sector's results

Source: upon close of 2019

Combined ratio

92.0%"

Motor 94.8%

ROE
13.5%

Multi-risk 94.0%

Health 94.6%

* Combined ratio includes Health and Funeral

In 2016, Solvency II came into effect, with the first official data
coming to light in 2017. The figures published continue to reflect
a consistent sectoral position. The average coverage ratio in
Spain at the close of 2019 reaches 237%, higher than the average
for the sector in the European Union (228%).

« Contact and calendar 2020
* Feedback
Credit insurance

Uncertainty arising from protectionist measures, the slowdown
in China and a less dynamic German industry have led to a drop
in international trade, especially in emerging markets.

* Advanced economies 1.3% (-1.9 p.p)
° Emerging economies 0.4% (-4.2 p.p)

By 2020, a recovery is expected, subject to the normalisation
of international relations:

* Advanced economies 2.2%
* Emerging economies 4.2%

In terms of insolvencies 2019 closes with an increase of 3.0%.
The markets with the greatest increase have been South Africa,

United Kingdom, Canada and Belgium.

For 2020, Western Europe is aiming for an increase in insol-
vencies after 6 years of sustained falls.

Grupo Catalana Occidente in 2019 / A year of growth and consolidation | 11

b


https://www.grupocatalanaoccidente.com/es-ES/accionistas-e-inversores/informacion-economica/year-in-review.aspx

Table of Contents / Letter from the Chairman / Management report / Consolidated Financial Statements / Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements / Auditor’s Opinion / Corporate Governance Report

Annual Report for
Grupo Catalana Occidente, S. A. 2019

03 Results in 2019
04 Business model

01 Annual panorama
02 Grupo Catalana Occidente in 2019

Evolution of the Group

Positive evolution of the recurring results for
traditional business and the credit insurance
business with growth in turnover and
improvement of the combined ratio.

The attributed result of the Group has grown by 9.6%, reaching
€352.1 million.

Positive evolution of turnover and results
This improvement is thanks to good performance of the turn-
over and the technical result.

The business volume (which includes the premiums invoiced
and the income from information) ascends to €4,547.7 million,
increasing by 4.7%.

In turn, the technical result, with €538.2 million, increased by
15.2% including the application of sound underwriting criteria
and the continuous improvement of efficiency.

It should be mentioned that in the year the Group has achieved
a higher number of customers and policies.

The good performance extends to all the Group's entities and
all the business units that make up the Group. In addition to
the corporate departments and corporate platforms, they im-
prove the efficiency of the business.

l;l;':? See customer section

(f) Excel

05 Corporate governance

07 Non-financial information statement + Contact and calendar 2020
06 Commitment to stakeholders * Glossary  Feedback
Income statement 2017 2018 2019 | %chg.18-19 ’g
Written premiums 41235 42127 44112 4.7% %
Income from information 130.8 1325 136.5 3.0% é
Turnover 42543 43452 4,5477 4.7% §
Technical cost 25484 25847 27395 6.0% é
% on total income from insurance 60.3% 60.0% 59.5% Turnover
Commissions 5219 5328 5611 5.3% .|.4.7%
% on total income from insurance 12.4% 12.4% 12.2%
Expenses 717.3 726.6 764.3 5.2%
% on total income from insurance 17.0% 16.9% 16.6%
Technical result after expenses 437.4 4673 538.2 15.2%
% on total net income 10.4% 10.8% 11.7%
Financial result 61.2 801 379
% on total income from insurance 14% 1.9% 0.8%
Result of non-technical non-financial account -335 -31.0 -259
% on total income from insurance -0.6% -0.7% -0.6%
Result of compl. activities credit and funeral insurance 104 6.4 59 -7.8%
% on total income from insurance 0.2% 0.1% 0.1%
Result before tax 475.5 522.8 556.2 6.4%
% on total income from insurance 11.3% 121% 12.1%
Taxes 118.2 136.4 1317
% taxes on result 24.9% 26.1% 23.7%
Consolidated result 357.3 386.4 424.5 9.9%
Minority interests 319 343 386 12.5% Attributed
Attributed result 3254 352.1 385.9 9.6% =
% on total income from insurance 77% 82% 8.4% + 9 . 6%
Recurring result 369.0 396.6 450.3 13.6%
Non-recurring result -11.8 -10.2 -25.8
* Total insurance income = total earned premiums and information income
Grupo Catalana Occidente in 2019 / A year of growth and consolidation | 12 >
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Improvement in the technical result

The combined ratio of the traditional business improved to 90.4%,
1.6 percentage points lower than the sector average. The tech-
nical cost is improving compared to the previous year, thanks
to the good performance of all our branches: motor, multi-risk
and other. The good combined ratio of 94.0% for motor was 1.3
percentage points better than in the same period of the previous
year, due to alower incidence of peak claims and a maintenance
of the frequency of claims.

In credit insurance, the combined net ratio closed the year at
73.4%, an improvement of 2.1 percentage points over the previ-
ous year. This improvement comes both from the maintenance
of technical costs and from a reduction in expenses and com-
missions and the improvement of reinsurance conditions.

Innovation in products and risks

Throughout 2019 the various companies that make up the
Catalana Occidente Group have strengthened their range of
products and services in different business areas. These include
the new Connected safety car service with which Seguros
Catalana Occidente seeks to improve the safety and protection
of users when they travel by car and the free weather alert ser-
vice with which the company warns and informs customers
when a major weather event is expected. Furthermore, the offer
for life products regarding special solutions and protection has
been updated for SMEs in the credit insurance.

The continuous incorporation of new measures for pricing and
selection of risks has permitted the Group to continue improv-
ing the quality of the new production and the technical balance
of the business lines. The Group advances in the facilitation of
processing through simpler forms and assignments for repair
and assessment.

@) Excel

I;‘“:, See capital management section

05 Corporate governance
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Improved efficiency

In the traditional business, expenses amounted to €315.2 million,
an increase of 3.1%. In relative terms, the ratio of expenses to
recurring premiums remained at 13.9%, the same percentage
as in the previous year.

The Group handled 2,135,393 claims, 2.4% more than in 2018,
reflecting a higher incidence in the various and life branches.

In credit insurance, the number of claims increased by 2.4%.

Financial margin and complementary activities

The net interest margin, at €37.9 million, fell by €42.2 million.
This reduction is due in part to the impairment of two entities
in the credit insurance business, and to the recognition in the
traditional business of insured interests to our policyholders
from the recalculation of the mathematical provisions at a risk-
free interest rate (EIOPA curve).

During the year, the Group has remained active in the diversi-
fication and search for profitability, undertaking various in-
vestments in properties. For the complementary activities, in
traditional business, the funeral activity reports €2.7 million in
profit and in credit insurance, the information, collections and
credit management services for export contributed €3.8 million
in profit.

Company income tax

In the year 2019, the expense for company income tax reached
€131.7 million, which represents an effective rate of 23.7% of
profit before taxes.

Financial strength
Long term capital increased by 19.0%, to €3,851.2 million. Adding
the capital gains not included in the balance sheet (from prop-

I:IH:? See section Solvency Il

 Contact and calendar 2020
* Feedback

erties), the long term capital at market value stand at €4,584.8
million, up 17.3% from 2018.

In 2019, A.M.Best maintained the rating of the main operating
entities in both traditional business and credit insurance at "a+"
(ICR), and Moody's of the credit insurance entities at "A2" with
a stable outlook.

Strong Solvency ratio

In terms of solvency, Grupo Catalana Occidente calculates the
capital requirement in accordance with the standard formula
established in the regulation, except for the area of credit and
surety where, with the objective of collecting the specific details
of the business, a partial internal model has been developed for
the calculation of the underwriting risk, approved by the college
of supervisors.

The Group's solvency ratio at 2019 year-end is estimated at 213%
(with the application of the transitional technical provisions
measures). The solvency ratio, even in adverse scenarios, remains
at around 160% on a sustained basis, in all Group companies.

Events after the close of 2019:

No unexplained events have occurred after the end of the year
that significantly affect the reported information. For further
information, see paragraph 22 of the Notes on the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Grupo Catalana Occidente in 2019 / A year of growth and consolidation | 13
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Ach_lSltlon of Antares Improves competitive position of the Group for health Incorporation in 2019
The close of the operation occurred on 14 February 2019, after
Market Market obtaining of no-opposition from the General Insurance

Group No. Premiums Group No. Premiums

share share Directorate and the authorisation of the transaction with the

National Commission of Markets and Competition.

On 8 November 2018, Grupo Catalana Occidente announced
the purchase of 100% of Seguros de Vida Pensiones Antares,
S.A. (“Antares”), a personal insurance company of Telefénica,
for an amount of €158.9 million. 4 Non 4 Non In terms of the balance sheet the impact is:

6 Total 2,854.0 4.5% 5 Total 3,429.9 4.8%

Life 2,104.4 6.0% Life 2,224.8 6.1%
] ) ) ) ) ) ) e Incorporation of €1,113.1 million in assets.
With this transactlgn, the Gljoup 1nc.r<.ease.d its welgl}t in the 15 Health 86.7 1.0% = 9 Health 170.3 1.9% « Goodwill of €21.9 million.
health sector, reaching the ninth position in the ranking with )
2% of the market share and €170.3 million in turnover in said 10 Life 7496 2.6% 10 Life 826.5 30% | Seesection 5 of the Notes to the report.
sector.
On 20 June 2019, it was agreed to merge Plus Ultra Seguros
Source: ICEA December 2018 Source: ICEA December 2019 ) )
and Antares through the absorption of the latter, which was
executed on 31 December.
Solid strategic matching Antares business data: Antares result 2019:
* Reinforcesthe position of the Group on the Spanish mar- * Specialised in health. Antares* 2019
ket * No. 17 in health with 0.96% of market share Turnover 144.0 §
* Consolidates the global offer for the customer o Insured parties 245,000 Health 809 5
* Increases the weight of the health business: ° Medical staff: over 18,000 professionals Other turnover 631 =
* 9th position on the Spanish market * Employees: 40 Earned premiums 144.0 §0
* 2 0% of market share Technical result after expenses 127 N
* Possibility of capturing long-term synergies % on earned premiums 8.8%
Technical-financial result 15.7
% on earned premiums 10.9%

* Antares' ordinary results for 2019.
The result of 11 months is incorporated to the Group.

./f) Antares Presentation Grupo Catalana Occidente in 2019 / A year of growth and consolidation | 14
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Shareholder remuneration

The historical pattern of dividend distribution
demonstrates the clear commitment of the Group
to remunerate its shareholders.

Dividends

In 2019, the Group increased its dividend by 7.26% and distrib-
uted €105.85 million

The Group has made 3 dividend payments in cash for a total
amount of €0.4764 per share. These payments were made on
10 July 2019, 09 October 2019 and 12 February 2020.
Furthermore, the Board of Directors agreed, in the meeting
held on 27 February 2020, to propose to the general sharehold-
ers meeting an increase of 10% for the complementary dividend
that will be paid on 8 May 2019. With this, a total of € 0.8821
per share (€105.85 million) would be allocated.

This dividend amounts to a pay-out of 27.4% on the 2019 attrib-
utable profit and a dividend yield of 2.75% in 2019.

In the last 10 years, Grupo Catalana Occidente has maintained
a growing dividend policy.

05 Corporate governance

07 Non-financial information statement

Share structure

Stable, committed shareholders. At the close of 2019, the share
structure had not suffered any variations.

The reference shareholder in Grupo Catalana Occidente is INOC
S.A., which controls approximately 61.42% of share capital.

The Group holds 2,095,017 shares in treasury stock with a par
value of 0.30 per share and an acquisition cost of 22.0 million
euros, representing 1.75% of treasury stock, through Sogesco.
During the year, 24,681 shares have been sold. This sale was
made as a result of the implementation of the Grupo Catalana
Occidente, S.A. Share Delivery Plan. 33.91% is free-float and
nearly half is in the hands of institutional investors. The Group
does not have any information regarding the existence of agree-
ments between the shareholders for the concerted exercise of
voting rights or limiting the transmission of their shares.

P Spain
271%

United Kingdom
17.0%

b USA
31.5%

Norway
6.1%

) Rest of Europe
18.3%

Geographic
distribution of
institutional
investors
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Relationship with the financial market

Grupo Catalana Occidente maintains a smooth, transparent
and close relationship with the financial market.

The Group has a policy of communication and relationship with
the financial market available on its website and is in contact
with its analysts, investors and shareholders through specific
channels.

Furthermore, the website for shareholders and investors updates
the performance of the share as well as the principal informa-
tion relative to relevant events, results, presentations and credit
rating.

During 2019, the Group transmitted its value proposition to the
financial markets through the quarterly retransmission of the
results published (on the website, in English and Spanish) and
by holding 16 roadshows and conferences in different European
countries.

With this type of event, the Group brings its business reality
closer to institutional investors such as small shareholders.

In January 2020, Grupo Catalana Occidente reported that in
order to increase the share's liquidity in the market, it had signed
aliquidity contract with GVC Gaesco Beka, Sociedad de Valores,
SA.

=[] Analysts and investors

< m Retransmissions :'n:’ Policy for communication and contact with the financial market ﬁ":p See shareholders and investors section =[] Shareholder services Grupo Catalana Occidente in 2019 / A year of growth and consolidation | 15
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Share performance

During the year the average share price was 32.09 euros/share
Grupo Catalana Occidente shares are listed on two Spanish stock
exchanges, Barcelona and Madrid, being listed on the contin-

uous market.

In 2019, Grupo Catalana Occidente's shares performed below
the Eurostoxx Insurance index and the Ibex 35.

The recommendations from analysts remain favourable, with

80% being “buy” and aiming towards an average objective price
of €39.0/share.

Share performance

12/2008  03/2019

06/2019

09/2019 12/2019

> Grupo Catalana Occidente ) IBEX 35 | EuroStoxx Insurance

I:Inrp See evolution of the Grupo Catalana Occidente share

05 Corporate governance
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Share data 2017 2018 2019
Minimum (€/s) 29.82 32.40 28.30
Maximum (€/s) 3857 39.20 3530
Period end (€/s) 36.94 32.60 3115
Number of shares 120,000,000 120,000,000 120,000,000
Nominal share value (€/s) 030 0.30 0.30
nglzzgrgsgiaily subscription (number 60,007 34149 44,093
Average daily subscription (euro) 2,081,648 1,243,406 1,412,462
Market capitalisation (millions of euro) 4,433 3,912 3,738
Ratios 2017 2018 2019
Profit per share 271 293 3.22
Theoretical Book value 23.62 25.66 32.09
PER 13.62 1111 9.69
ROE 12.84 12.29 1110
Profitability per dividend 2.18 2.25 2.75
Profitability 2002 | 2007 | 2012| 2017 2018 2019 (;I': (1:;
Closing price 31/12 399 | 2291| 1377| 3694 326 3115

GCO (%) -721| -1654| 1222| 1874 -1175 -4.45 13.4%
IBEX 35 (%) -28.11 732| -466 740 -1497 1182 2.7%
EUROSTOXX Insurance (%) -51.23 | -11.92| 3292 693 -10.05 24.44 4.3%
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Outlook and challenges for 2020

In view of the foreseeable economic context, the
Group will continue to adapt its offerings to the
new needs of customers and market trends.

Macroeconomic perspectives in 2020

Internationally, GDP growth is estimated at 3.3%. Geopolitical
uncertainty, especially related to international trade, continues
to negatively affect economic prospects. The Chinese economy
is also continuing to slow down its GDP growth rate.

In the Eurozone, GDP data point to subdued growth of 1.3%,
reaffirming the weakness of manufacturing output.

The Spanish economy's GDP is estimated to grow by 1.6% thanks
to the upturn in investment, the expansionary fiscal policy and
the improvement in consumer confidence and the public defi-
cit.

In emerging markets, growth will strengthen somewhat in 2020,
to 4.4%, driven by the economic recovery in Latin America.
However, the trade war between the United States and China
continues to be an encumbrance on activity.

Weak business prospects and policy uncertainty are deterio-
rating business sentiment, affecting investment growth and
increasing financial risks. As a result, corporate insolvencies,
which already increased by 3.0% in 2019, are expected to con-
tinue growing at a rate of 2.6% in 2020.

I;In} Main figures (Result Centre)
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Guidelines for Grupo Catalana Occidente 2020

The Group annually updates its strategic framework, where it
addresses the purpose, action commitments and guidelines on
which its strategy is based, along with action plans for the year

2020.

Our three strategic pillars are developed around nine lines of action

« Contact and calendar 2020

During 2020 the Group will continue to make progress in the development of its distribution networks, technical manage-
ment of the insurance business and investments, innovation and new technologies. All of this seeks to improve customer
service through proximity and agility in management.

The human factoris also a fundamental element of the corporate project. The business culture, entrepreneurship, the search
for and management of talent are key to the development of the Group.

Growth

' \'/
)

i
Distribution channels

Products and services

Customer orientation

J

® Increase the dimension of the agencies

and strengthen the specialised networks.

® Incorporate services to guarantees and
adapt the offer to new market trends.

® Prioritise the “customer concept” in
management.

Profitability

Actuarial technique
Investments

Efficiency

J

® Continue to refine underwriting and
technical management to improve
margins

® To make investments that allow to
maintain the competitiveness and to
assure the solvency.

® Advance in the simplicity of products,

processes and systems.

()
O

Solvency

Human team and values
Innovation and branding

Risk and capital management

J

® Develop internal talent and enhance
corporate culture.
® Incorporating innovation in management

® Maintain financial strength, risk
management capabilities and control
systems.
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Results in 2019

Improving results

The Group complies with its
objective to increase profits,
both in traditional business
and credit insurance,
increasing permanent
resources and with a solvency
above 210%.

< Results in 2019 / Improving results | 18 >
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Traditional business

Traditional business presents a very positive
evolution, increasing its recurring result by 8.4%.

Recurring turnover (excluding single life premiums) increased
by 3.1%, supported mainly by non-life insurance, where the
increase in multi-risk premiums is noteworthy. The life business
evolved favourably with a 5.3% increase in turnover and a 16.9%
increase in earned premiums, which include the contribution
to the Antares business.

The Antares business has been incorporated since February
and has contributed €11.5 million to the life business (see details
on page 15).

The technical result of €214.6 million, grew by 6.7%. Non-life
business contributed €156.2 million to this result, up 11.0%,
reflecting a 0.9 percentage point improvement in the combined
ratio to 90.4%. It highlights the best technical cost of cars and
multi-risk. The Life business, meanwhile, saw its technical result
fall by €2.1 million to €58.4 million, as the Group decided to
recognise in full and for the products concerned the new biom-
etric tables published by the DGSyFP.

The financial result contributes €59.3 million, and the funeral
business €2.7 million

Recurring profit has increased 8.4% to €212.1 million During
the year there were non-recurring negative results of €7.9 mil-
lion; consequently, the total result is €204.2 million, increasing
by 6.8%.

(f) Excel
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Traditional business 2017 2018 2019 | %chg.18-19 ’g‘
Written premiums 2,516.1 2,541.2 2,612.4 2.8% %
Recurring premiums 2,153.2 2,200.5 2,268.6 3.1% § R .
. 5 £ ecurring
Earnefj premiums 2,506.2 2,531.2 2,707.5 70% < premiums
Technical result 182.8 201.2 214.6 6.7% §B 3 ]_(y
% on earned premiums 73% 79% 79% S . 0
Financial result 725 741 59.3 -20.0%
% on earned premiums 2.9% 2.9% 2.2%
Non Technical result -22.0 -20.4 -14.6 Recurring
Complementary act. Funeral business 3.6 24 27 result
Company income tax 576 -615 -50.0 0
pany +8.4%
Recurring result 179.1 195.7 212.1 8.4%
Non-recurring result 14 -4.6 -79
Total result 180.5 1911 204.2 6.8%
p Motor p Agents
25.2% 62.4%
Other Brokers
119% 25.2%
P> Health ) Bankinsurance
2.3% 2.4%
Distribution Funeral Distribution Direct
by business 5.3% channels &y 3%
p> Periodic life p> Institutional
premiums 16.8% 5.1%
p> Single premiums p Others
13.2% 1.3%
p Multi-risk 25.3%
Combined ratio Commissions 30.1% Traditional Sector
+ expenses (0.0p.p) blsiness
c0.2% 90.4% W 92.0%* o _
Technical cost .2/ (-09 p.p.) Fomb/ned sector ratio
(-09p.p) includes health and
funeral business
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Multi-risk
Multi-risk 2017 2018 2019 | %chg.18-19
Written premiums 631.3 645.9 661.6 2.4%
Revenue growth of 2.4% to €661.6 million, with a Earned premiums 629.8 6387 6533 2.3%
reduction in the combined ratio of 0.4 percentage Number of claims 656,222 728229 719.419 12%
points compared to the previous year. The weather | , e age cost of the claims, in € 5202 494.9 508.8 2.8%
events t.hat occurred in the §econd half of the year Technical Provisions 529.6 525.1 5377 2.4%
had an impact on the technical cost, although they | . - 1% 55.8% 55 3% 05
were largely supported.bv the Insurance % commissions 20.6% 20.7% 20.9% 0.2
Compensatlon Consortium. % expenses 13.3% 13.4% 13.3% -0.1
% combined ratio 88.0% 89.9% 89.5% -04
Technical result after expenses 75.8 64.5 68.6 6.4%
% on earned premiums 12.0% 10.1% 10.5%
Motor
Motor 2017 2018 2019 | %chg.18-19
Written premiums 651.8 654.3 657.3 0.5%
Maintenance of turnover with €657.3 million. The Earned premiums 649.0 657.2 655.2 -03%
combined ratio improved 1.3 percentage points to Number of claims 574.467 578,897 571208 13%
94.0%, with a reduced claims ratio due to alower Average cost of the claims, in € 804.4 805.9 805.1 -0.1%
incidence of peak claims and a maintenance of the | T\ =0 Voo 7905 810.1 824.0 17%
accident frequency. % Technical cost 71.2% 71.3% 70.0% -13
% commissions 11.1% 11.0% 11.1% 01
% expenses 14.2% 13.0% 12.9% -0.1
% combined ratio 96.5% 95.3% 94.0% -13
Technical result after expenses 227 309 39.6 28.2%
% on earned premiums 3.5% 4.7% 6.0%

(f) Excel

(figures in millions of euro)

(figures in millions of euro)

Premiums
invoiced

+2.4%

Combined
ratio

89.5%

Recurrent
invoiced

+0.5%

Combined
ratio

94.0%
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Other
Other 2017 2018 2019 | %chg 18-19
Written premiums 2939 308.4 3117 1.1%
Growth in turnover of 1.1% to €311.7 million. The Earned premiums 290.4 305.2 311.8 2.2%
combined ratio was 84.6%, down 0.6 percentage Number of claims 95,247 96,159 100783 48%
points due to the maintenance of technical costs Average cost of the claims, in € 15915 1610.0 15499 37%
and a reduction in fees, which offset a slight Technical Provisions 4951 489.9 5405 10.3%
Increase in Expenses. % Technical cost 52.1% 50.2% 50.1% -0.1
% commissions 20.5% 20.8% 20.1% -0.7
% expenses 14.8% 14.1% 14.3% 0.2
% combined ratio 87.4% 85.2% 84.6% -0.6
Technical result after expenses 36.6 453 48.0 6.0%
% on earned premiums 12.6% 14.8% 15.4%
Life
Life 2017 2018 2019 | %chg 18-19
Life insurance turnover 939.1 932.6 981.8 5.3%
The life business evolved favourably with a 5.3% Periodic premiums 394.0 4006 4382 9.4%
increase in turnover and a 16.9% increase in Health 545 576 60.9 5.7%
earned premiums, which include the contribution Funeral 1277 1337 138.8 3.8%
to the Antares business. Single premiums 3629 3407 3438 0.9%
Pension plan contributions 60.3 61.2 69.1 12.9%
The result has been positively impacted by the Net contributions to investment funds 74 43 19
incorporation of the Antares business with an Volume of funds under management 5,638.0 57119 6,617.3 15.9%
amount of €11.5 million and negatively by the Earned premiums 936.9 9301 1,087.2 16.9%
recognition of the new biometric tables published Technical result after expenses 476 60.5 58.4 -3.5%
by the DGSyFP for an amount of €13.3 million in % on earned premiums 51% 6.5% 5.4%
the affected products. Technical-financial result 79.4 92.2 81.2 -11.9%
% on earned premiums 85% 9.9% 75%

./f) Excel

(figures in millions of euro)

(figures in millions of euro)

e

Premiums
invoiced

+1.1%

Combined
ratio

84.6%

Recurring
premiums

+7.8%
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Credit insurance business

Credit insurance income increased 18.6% to €238.2
million and continues to maintain an excellent
combined ratio.

The credit insurance business has increased its net income
(earned premiums and information services) by 6.5% reaching
€1,896.0 million. The earned premiums, with €1,759.5 million,
increased by 6.7% with growth in all markets.

In Spain and Portugal, the Group increased earned premiums
by 1.4% and in the other European markets premiums rose at
an average rate of 6.8%, with constant growth in Germany being
particularly noteworthy. In the Americas premiums grew 18.5%
mainly due to the impact of exchange rates.

In terms of exposure to risk (TPE), the Group increased by 2.9%

to €672.5 million. Europe represents 71.8% of total exposure
and Spain is the main market, with 14.7% of the total.

Evolution of cumulative risk (TPE)

Spain

Other Europe

> Rest of the world
aofl W W e

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

(f) Excel

05 Corporate governance

07 Non-financial information statement

+6.7% increase in earned premiumes, at €1,759.5 million.

Spainand Portugal 191%

Earned premiums: €335.3 million
Change +1.4%

Americas 7 2 %

Earned premiums: €126.3 million
Variation +18.5%

Asiaandrest of theworld B 8 ()9
Earned premiums € 140.0 million :

Change +10.4%
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28.0%

29.8%

Central and Northern Europe
Earned premiums: €492.7 million
Change +8.6%

Western Europe
Earned premiums: €523.5 million
Change: +6.1%

8.19% <« Southern Europe

Earned premiums: €141.8 million
Change +3.3%

Earned premiums

P> Credit insurance
74.3%

Surety insurance
6.1%

. Accepted reinsurance
Business 7.0%

diversification

Income from information
6.8%

p> Income from
complementary
activities
5.9%

p> Brokers
64.8%

Direct
15.5%

Agents

Distribution 19.7%
channels
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The technical result after expenses, at €404.8 million, increased | Creditinsurance business 2017 2018 2019 | %chg.18-19 g
by 7.2%, in line with revenue growth. Earned premiums 1,588.0 16485 17595 67% S
<
Income from information 130.8 1325 136.5 3.0% = Net
Since .the beginping of the yez.ir, the Gr.oup has ipcreaseq itS | Netincome 1,718.8 1,781.0 1,896.0 6.5% § income
retention o'f business I')Y 2.0 pcf)lntS, placing the ratio .Of assIgn- | rachnical result after expenses 392.9 3776 404.8 7.2% %0 + 6 5%
mirlllt) .to ;elnsurapce in 3;?2;) of 'tlﬁe earI;eFl pr(;nllll'umi Tilz % on income 2299 212% 21.4% S .
percentage point to 43 4% and net foes and expenses falling | "R et
D 8ep L ’ . o P & Reinsurance transfer ratio 42.5% 40.0% 38.0%
by 0.8 percentage points to a ration of 30.0%. .
Net technical result 259.2 2719 322.2 18.5%
0, H 0, 0, 0,
The financial result contributes €5.6 million reflecting the ex- A.O" '".Come 15.1% 15.3% 170%
change rate movements that have been considerably reduced. | Financialresult 33 92 5.6
The result of the complementary activities is €3.2 million. % on income 0.2% 0.5% 0.3%
Result from complementary activities 6.8 38 3.2 -15.8%
Consequently, the recurring result is positioned at €238.2 mil- | Company income tax -69.9 -76.6 -85.4
lion, up 18.6% from the previous year. During the year there | Adjustments -9.6 74 74
were non-recurring results amounting to €17.9 million, mainly | Recurring result 190.0 2009 238.2 18.6% Recurring
due to the impairment of the investment in two associated com- | Non-recurring result 132 57 179 result
panies. Total business result 176.8 195.2 220.3 12.8% + 18 . 6 %
In total, this business provides a result of €220.3 million and
increases by 12.8%.
Performance of the net combined ratio
|»> Technical cost 75.6% 76.8% 75.29% 75.5% 73.4%
} Expenses + commissions
Combined
ratio
()
73.4%
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
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General expenses and

. . Expenses and commissions 2017 2018 2019 | %chg.18-19

Comm]'SSlonS Traditional business 3116 305.8 315.2 31%
Credit insurance business 400.8 4134 4490 8.6%

The efficiency ratio stands at 32.6%; in 2019 an Non-recurring expenses 48 74 0.0

effort has been made to amortize investments in Total expenses 7173 726.6 764.3 5.2%

new technologies. Commissions 521.9 532.8 561.1 5.3%
Total expenses and commissions 1,239.2 1,259.4 1,325.4 5.2%

The structure of Grupo Catalana Occidente, formed by entities % expenses and commissions without recurring premiums ~ 32.8% 32.3% 32.6%

that maintain autonomous management of the business, allows

for the constant sharing of business best practices and efficien-

cy in processes through corporate departments and operative

platforms.

In particular, in traditional business the expenses have increased

by 3.1%. In credit insurance, expenses are increasing at a higher

rate than income growth due in part to the effort in investments

in new technologies.

Inrelative terms, the expenses and commissions ratio for recur-

ring premiums increased 0.3 percentage points to 32.6%. Since

2013, the Group has improved efficiency by 3.6 percentage points.

Non're Curr]_ng re SU_]_t Non-recurring result (net of taxes) 2017 2018 2019
Financial 04 2.3 -54

During this year, there have been non-recurring Expenses and other non-recurring -5.2 -5.6 -39

negative results mainly due to deterioration in Taxes 6.2 13 L4

assets. Non-recurrent from traditional business 14 -4.6 -79
Financial -8.1 -0.1 -18.1

By business, non-recurring profit after tax from the traditional | Expenses and other non-recurring -59 74 0.0

business led to losses of €7.9 million and €17.9 million in the | Taxes 0.8 19 0.2

credit insurance business, due mainly to the impairment of two | Non-recurring from credit insurance -13.2 -5.7 179

investees amounting to €16 million. Non-recurring result -11.8 -10.2 -25.8

/f) Excel

Efficiency ratio

+32.6%

(figures in millions of euro)
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Relnsurance I‘eSUIt . % chg. Traditional Credit 9
Reinsurance 2017 2018 2019 18-19 business | insurance &
Premiums granted -774.0 -770.4 -801.3 4.0% -107.2 -694.0 §
In credit insurance, retention has increased by 2.0 | et premiums granted 7679 7686 7985 3.9% 1131|6853 &
percentage points to 62% % on earned premiums -188%  -18.4% -17.9% -42% -38.9% §
Commissions 2720 299.0 338.8 13.3% 223 316.5 é
The transfgr to reinsurance is mainly as consequence of the Claims 3248 3239 3538 92% 676 2862
type of business undertaken by the Group. Reinsurance granted result -171.1 -145.8 -105.9 -23.2 -82.6

In credit insurance, proportional assignments are made that
bring greater stability to the results over the business cycle, as
well as non proportional transfers to mitigate the potential
impact of relevant claims. In 2019, the Group has continued to
increase the retention of business by placing the ratio of as-
signment at 38%.

* Note: in credit insurance, the claim excludes a peak loss that is 100% assigned to reinsurance.

Traditional business keeps a high retention of the insured busi-
ness, and reinsurance is protected mainly through stop-loss | Reinsurance distribution between lines of business
contracts for relevant claims.
} % premiums retained
Overall, the cost of reinsurance has implied €105.9 million, €23.2
million from traditional business and the remaining €82.6 % premiums transferred
million from the credit insurance business.

The major reinsurance brokers for both the traditional and credit
insurance business are Munich Re, General Re, Swiss Re,
Hannover Re and Axis. These all have a credit rating of "A" or
higher.

Grupo Catalana Occidente 81.6% 18.4%

4.0%

Traditional business 96.0%

Credit insurance business 60.6% 39.4%
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Financial result
Financial result 2017 2018 2019 | %chg.18-19
Financial income net of expenses 2211 204.4 2157 5.5%
The ﬁ.nan('ial investments have pI‘OVided Exchange Differences -0.5 01 0.0
€37.9 million. Subsidiary companies 07 10 11
Interests applied to life -148.7 -131.4 -157.6 19.9%
The financial result contributed €37.9 million to the Group's | Recurring results traditional business 725 74.1 59.3 -20.0%
income statement, reducing it by €42.2 million due to the dif- % on earned premiums 299 299 22%
ferent impact of the non-recurrent result. Financial income net of expenses 153 16.7 16.6 -0.6%
. . . . Exchange Differences 0.5 4.8 -13
Tra<.11.tlona1.busmess w1.th €5§.3 million is reduced by the r.ec— Subsidiary companies 43 47 - 511%
ognition of interest applied to life as a result of the recalculation .
of certain mathematical provisions to a risk-free interest rate Interests subordinated debt 169 169 169
curve (EIOPA curve). Also, during the year there have been sig- Recurring results from credit insurance 33 9.2 5.6 -39.1%
nificant maturities where reinvestment has taken place at the | % 01 netincome from insurance 0.2% 0.5% 03%
market interest rates. Intra-group interest adjustment -70 -54 -35 -35.2%
Adjusted recurring financial results from credit insurance -3.7 3.8 21
In turn, credit insurance provides €5.6 million, reflectinglosses | Recurring financial results 68.9 719 61.5 -21.1%
in exchange rate movements and the interest charge due to the | % on net income from insurance 1.6% 1.8% 1.3%
repayment of intra-group loans. Non-recurring financial results 77 2.2 -23.5
Financial result 61.2 80.1 379

Finally, the non-recurring results reduce the financial result by
€23.5 million, mainly due to the impairment of two investees.

/f) Excel

(figures in millions of euro)

Traditional
business

€59.3 million

Credit
insurance

€5.6 million
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Balance sheet

Grupo Catalana Occidente has increased its assets
by €2,198.5 million with an ROE of 11.1% in 2019.

Grupo Catalana Occidente closed the balance sheet of 2019 with
assets of €16,677.9 million, up 15.2% from the year 2018.

The main items that explain this increase are:
¢ Investments, at €1,744.7 million.
¢ Technical provisions, at €1,084.4 million
¢ Net equity, at €647.1 million.

The assets attributed to the Group are positioned at €3,477.1
million, therefore the ROE reaches 11.1%.

The incorporation of Antares has increased assets by €1,113.1
million and goodwill by €21.9 million.

Note that the item “cash” does not reflect the Group's liquidity
position as investments in deposits and money market funds
are included in Financial Investments (See Investments and
Funds under Management table).

Likewise, it should be remembered that Grupo Catalana
Occidente does not account for the surplus value of its proper-
ty featured, so they appear at the amortised cost value and not
at market value.

I;Inrp See investments section I;‘“I, See accounts report

/f) Excel
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Assets 2017 2018 2019 | %chg.18-19
Intangible assets and property 1,218.8 1,242.1 1,429.1 15.1%
Investments 10,596.9 10,873.7 12,618.4 16.0%
Property investment 382.8 5611 661.4 17.9%
Financial investments 8,9579 91491 10,602.3 15.9%
Cash and short-term assets 1,256.2 11635 13547 16.4%
Reinsurance of technical provisions 8425 8374 874.3 4.4%
Other assets 1,543.2 1,526.2 1,756.0 15.1%
Deferred tax assets 84.3 96.5 226.3 134.5%
Credits 946.4 885.3 951.0 7.4%
Other assets 512.5 544.4 578.7 6.3%
Total assets 14,2014 14,479.4 16,6779 15.2%
Net liabilities and equity 2017 2018 2019 | %chg.18-19
Permanent resources 3,278.9 3,404.6 4,051.7 19.0%
Net equity 3,078.6 3,204.1 3,851.2 20.2%
Parent company 2,752.6 2,863.8 34771 21.4%
Minority interests 326.0 3403 3741 9.9%
Subordinated liabilities 200.3 200.4 200.5 0.0%
Technical Provisions 9,425.2 9,567.7 10,652.1 11.3%
Other liabilities 1,497.3 1,507.1 1,974.1 31.0%
Other provisions 165.2 1841 2105 14.3%
Deposits for reinsurance granted 577 52.8 529 0.2%
Deferred tax liabilities 3326 280.9 488.4 73.9%
Debts 6187 6871 767.8 11.7%
Other liabilities 3231 3022 4545 50.4%
Total net liabilities and equity 14,201.4 14,479.4 16,6779 15.2%

(figures in millions of euro)

Technical Provisions

+€1,084.4

million
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Investments and fundS U.nder have a very high rate of occupancy. Every two years they are
evaluated, through entities that are authorised by the supervi-
management sor. Capital gains from these properties stand at€533.1 million.
The value of equity investments increased by 33.9% and repre-
At the close of 2019, the Group manages funds sented 12.9% of the portfolio. The securities portfolio is broadly
amounting to €14,377.3 million, €2,053.8 million diversified and focused on large-cap securities, mainly in Europe
more than in the previous year. but with highlighted exposure to Spain (25.7%), which have at-
tractive dividend yields.
Pension plans, mutual funds and investments on behalf of pol- | In terms of liquidity, the Group maintains a solid position of
icyholders continue to grow at a high rate. €2,012.1 million, 10.1% more than at the beginning of the year.
The Group has a total of €608.6 million in deposits, mainly in
The distribution of the investment portfolio remained stable | Banco Santander, BBVA and Bankinter.
with respect to the beginning of the year, although during the
period the Group increased its exposure to real estate and in-
creased its position in cash and monetary assets.
The Group invests mainly in fixed income, which represents | Investmentsand managed funds 2017 2018 2019 | %chg.18-19 | %oninv.R.Co. T
56.6% of the total portfolio, with €7,361.2 million, The main asset | properties 11707 1371.2 16785 22.4% 12.9% “;‘
is the Spanish sovereign debt with €3,406.4 million.. The dis- Fixed Income 6,568.4 6,631.2 7361.2 11.0% 56.6% é
tribution of the rating in the portfolio is shown graphically below. Variable income 1404.0 12502 16737 33.9% 12.9% §
At the end of the period, 59.9% of the portfolio had an Arating | p ¢ with credit institutions 3824 6443 6086 -5.5% ar §
or l_nghez,ieﬂte_mng the }nCl;é;SZ 1 ttl,le Spf‘EISh ri;“;f‘% Oftiﬁe Other investments 1352 1537 199.1 29.5% 15% °
2;:22; :}? e ;iézri?igalagee;rcilsz.GGze;::aﬁg;ro fifarl))?fi t;[) altO;2 5‘%?. Cash and m(')nfetary assets ‘ 1,274.9 1,183.6 1,403.5 18.6% 10.8% Managed funds
Investment in investee companies 84.8 854 85.8 0.5% 0.7% +16 7%
In recent years, the Group has increased its investments in real Total investments, risk to entity 11,020.4 11,319.6  13,010.5 14.9% 100.0% °
estate. At the end of the year, this investment increased by €307.3 Investments on behalf of policyholders 356.8 362.1 Sy/5Alk 58.8%
million. In total, property at market value amount to €1,378.5 Pension plans and investment funds 611.0 641.8 7917 23.4%
million representing 12.9% of the total portfolio. Total investments, risk to policy holders 967.8 1,003.9 1,366.8 36.1%
Investments and managed funds 11,988.2 12,3235 14,3773 16.7%
The majority of the properties are located in areas considered
prime areas in the most important Spanish cities. All of the
properties for use by third parties are located in these areas and

(f) Excel
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Fixed income distribution in 2019 Variable income distribution in 2019
P> Spain
25.7%
Netherlands
3.5%
p> BBB and Rest France
40.1% 13.0%
. P> Public Fixed Income . AAA Variable p> United Kingdom
Fixed Income 53.6% Fixed Income 4.2% Income by 0.8%
b e Private fixed income By ratin AA . P Germany
yyp 46.4% y g 7.4% countries 7.9%
b A P> Rest of Europe
48.3% \ 30.9%
us.
171%
p Other
12%
P Financial
277%
P Spain P Financial Industrial
55.8% 40.3% 14.7%
Netherlands Public Services Technological
8.3% 8.4% 9.7%
France Non-cyclical consumer goods Public Services
11.5% 10.8% 10.0%
. p> United Kingdom Private p Communications Van‘able p> Diversified
Fixed Income >2% income b e income b 0%
by countries p Germany y P Industrial y p Commodities
5.6% sectors 8.3% sectors 11%
P> Rest of Europe » Cyclical consumer goods p Communications
4.4% 171% 77%
p US. p Energy p> Cyclical consumer goods
6.3% 2.8% 9.1%
p Other p Non-cyclical consumer goods
2.9% 15.0%
p Energy
4.8%

I;I;l_.r? See report chapter "Fixed income" notes 4, 7, 8 and 9
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Capital management

Grupo Catalana Occidente manages its capital with
the goal of maximising value for all its interest groups,
maintaining a solid position through obtaining long-
term results and a prudent policy for remunerating
shareholders.

All Group entities maintain the necessary financial strength to
develop the business strategy, taking risks prudently and meet-
ing the required solvency needs.

In addition to the remuneration policy for shareholders, in the
capital planning, the Group takes into account, among others,
the following aspects:

¢ The solvency ratio of the Group and its individual entities
in accordance with the risk appetite.

* Anychangeintheriskprofile of the particulargroup,among
others, with the following aspects:

* Changes in reinsurance policy, especially in the cred-
it business. Specifically in the year 2019, retention of
the credit business reinsurance increased from 60% to
62%.

* Corporatetransactions such as mergers oracquisitions.
For this, the acquisition of Antares was completed in
February.

* Theasset-liability management (ALM) oflife and cash busi-
ness of each of the entities.

I:Tp SFCR
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Principles of capital management
Capital management is governed by the following principles:

* Ensuring that Group companies have sufficient capital to
meet their obligations, even when faced by extraordinary
events

* Managing capital taking into account the economic vision,
as well as the objectives established in the risk appetite.

e Optimising the capital structure through the efficient al-
location of resources between entities, ensuring financial
flexibility and remunerating shareholders appropriately

The Group defines the strategic plan and the risk strategy con-
sidering the capital management policy, using the solvency
projections made in the internal evaluation process of risks and
solvency (ORSA).

Capital quantification is carried out at the Group level and at
the level of each of the entities, using different models for mon-
itoring: ORSA, rating agencies, economic and regulatory models.

Capital performance

At the close of 2019, the Group's capital has increased by 17.3%
supported by the improvement of the results and the revalua-
tion of the assets.

The improved result has helped to boost the Company's equity
position. Market movements have led to an increase in the value
of investments, with a positive impact of €357.2 million. Also,
dividends have been paid, amounting to €100.5 million, thus
reducing the Net Equity by the same amount.

In credit insurance, Atradius has issued subordinated debt
amounting to €250 million, maturing in September 2044, which
can be fully amortised from September 2024. It bears interest

« Contact and calendar 2020
* Feedback

at a fixed rate of 5.25% for the first ten years and, thereafter, the
interest rate is variable 3-month Euribor plus 5.03%. The amount
of the subordinated debt to be calculated for the purposes of the
Group has been reduced by €54.3 million after deducting the
investment that some entities of traditional business have in
the bond. (See section 13 a) of the Notes to the report).

Long-term capital on 31/12/2018 3,404.5
Long-term capital at market value at 31/12/18 3,908.6
Net equity on 31/12/2018 3,204.1
(+) Consolidated results 4245
(+) Dividends paid -100.5
(+) Change of valuation adjustments 3572
(+) Other changes -34.2
Total movements 6471
Total net equity on 31/12/2019 3,851.2
Subordinated debt 200.5
Long-term capital on 31/12/2019 4,051.7
Capital gains not included in balance sheet 5331
Long-term capital at market value at 31/12/2019 4,584.8
Evolution of long-tern capital at market value

2012 2,343

2013 2,607

2014 3,168

2015 3,263

2016 3,509

2017 3,756

2018 3,909

2019 |, + 585
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Credit rating

During the previous period (2018), A.M. Best and Moody's raised
the credit rating of the Group's main companies, both in tradi-
tional business (ICR 'a+') and in credit insurance ('A2").

In November 2019, A.M. Best confirmed the financial strength
rating of A (excellent) for the Group's main operating entities,
bothin traditional business and in credit insurance, and Moody's
ratified the rating of A2 for the operating entities in the credit
business under the Atradius brand.

In traditional business, the rating of A (excellent) reflects the
sound balance sheet strength, good business model, excellent
operating results and appropriate capitalisation of the Group's
main operating entities.

Prudent underwriting guidelines and an extensive network of
agents were also highlighted, providing the Group with great-
er stability and proximity to customers.

Furthermore, it considers that exposure to natural disasters is
limited, thanks to the existence of a national coverage system
(Consorcio de Compensacién de Seguros).

In relation to Group entities operating in the credit insurance
business, A.M. Best and Moody's have equally highlighted their
financial strength and great competitive position thanks to:

e Strong operational performance.

* Robust technical results.

¢ Leadingpositioninthe creditinsurance marketworldwide,
as the second operator.

* Good diversification by geography and industry.
¢ Excellent understanding of its risk exposures.

Iiln:p SFCR
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Rating of Group entities
AMBest Moody's
Seguros Catalana Occidente :éfgatg{ﬁ e('EISCRI‘?))
Seguros Bilbao :/a-\ftsita)ltﬁ e(IEFC?)
Plus Ultra Seguros :éfﬁg:)el e(EISCFg)
‘A stable (FSR) ‘A2' stable

Atradius Crédito y Caucion Seg Reas ‘a+’ stable (ICR) (FS)

‘A stable (FSR) ‘A2' stable

Atradius Reinsurance DAC ‘a+ stable (ICR) (FS)

‘N stable (FSR) ‘A2' stable

Atradius Trade Credit Insurance, Inc. ‘a+’ stable (ICR) (FS)

‘N stable (FSR)

Atradius Seguros de Crédito, S.A. ‘a+ stable (ICR)

IIAII

A M. Best operating entities of the Group

Best highlights the prudence in underwriting, which
is reflected in a positive record of operating results
with an excellent combined ratio and a high return
on equity (ROE).

IIAZII

Moody's o%era_ting entities of the credit
insurance business

They highlight the strong competitive position,
strong capitalization, low financial leverage and
conservative investment portfolio.
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Financial strength

The Group presents a debt ratio of 4.8%, reduced by 0.2 p.p.
thanks to the increase in net worth. The debt corresponds to
the emission from the Group entity in credit insurance: Atradius.

Reducing debt ratio

= 1 111
I B B s s

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

} Debt

Net equity + debt

Strong interest coverage ratio

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Result before tax (€ million) } Interest (€M)
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Solvency II

The estimated Solvency II ratio applying the transitory meas-
ure for technical provisions at the close of 2019 is of 213%. The
solvency ratio at the end of 2018, when it was not possible to
apply the transitional measure of technical provisions, was
207%.

The entities of the Group present average solvency II ratios of
above 170%.

Grupo Catalana Occidente has a robust financial and solvency
position to withstand adverse situations; in fact, the ratio of
solvency Il is maintained around 160% even in adverse scenar-
ios. Furthermore, it should be noted that the own funds are of
high quality, with over 90% of the same being tierl.

The Group carries out a quantitative valuation of the risks using
the standard formula, except in the credit insurance under-
writing risk, which uses a partial internal model approved in
July 2017.

I:Tp SFCR
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*
Evolution Solven cy 12M 2018 12M 2019e¢
ratio
. . . . * Data with transition of technical provisions and
with partial internal model.
Capital Oown Excess Capital Oown Excess
required funds solvency required funds solvency

Stress scenarios and sensitivity analysis based on the SFCR 2018 published in June 2019

Underwriting scenarios . . .
8 Main ratio scenario
Lowering premiums -5% -1% 207 O(y
Increased claims ratio* -29% . 0
Set of scenarios -30%
Market scenarios
Variable Income -10% -3%
Real estate -5% -2%
Set of scenarios -5%
* Increase in the claims ratio, which in the credit insurance business
-25% RV -9% was achieved during the period of financial crisis and in the
Rates curve +100 pb S +4% traditional business increased in the main branches such as fire
and other damage to property and motor
Rates curve -100 pbs -5%
** Adverse scenario measured as a reduction in premiums in the
0,
Sp read +10 pr 0% main branches of traditional business and credit insurance;
Impairment rating -1% increase in the claims ratio being that achieved in the credit
insurance business during the period of financial crisis and in the
Adverse scenario** -35% tra:ltl;;nald busmesst Increasgg in (tjhe n;a/n bl:nctl?es ;uch ai ﬁred
and other damage to property and motor; reduction in equity an
Without application of the volatility adjustment and without application 2% maintenance of low interest rates.
= (]

of the transitional measure of technical provisions
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Business model

Protection and forecast

The Group reinforces its strategic
purpose with positions of leadership
in protection and long-term welfare
for families and companies in Spain
and on the coverage of commercial
credit risks at the international level,
supported by cultural keys and
promoting innovation.
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Business model

In 2019, the Group has continued to occupy
leadership positions on the Spanish market and
has maintained its share of the credit insurance
segment up to 24% on an international level.

The aim of the Group is based on leadership in protection and
long-term welfare for families and companies in Spain and on
the coverage of commercial credit risks at the international
level.

Grupo Catalana Occidente is a multinational company engaged
in insurance operations, operating in over 50 countries through
over 50 entities.

The participation of the various entities in Grupo Catalana
Occidente implies, without prejudice to their legal autonomy,
their integration within the corporate structure through the
coordination and supervision of their activities by the parent
company.

Grupo Catalana Occidente S.A. is the holding company that acts
as the parent company of the Group, with its shares listed in
the Madrid and Barcelona stock exchanges, listed on the
Continuous Market and subject to the supervision of the CNMV.
Also, as an insurance entity, the Group is subject to the super-
vision of the General Directorate of Insurance and Pensions.

In Spain, the Group holds the fifth position in the ranking, with
a market share of 4.8%: 6.1% in non-life and 3.0% in life.
Furthermore, in credit insurance, the Group is the second entity
worldwide, with a market share of 24%.

I;Injp Main figures (Result Centre)
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Group position on the Spanish insurance market

No.1
(53.6%)

No. 2
(8.8%)

No. 4
(6.1%)

No. 6

No.10 (5.8%)

(3.0%)

Life Non-Life

No.9
(2.0%)

Multi-risk Health

Credit insurance
Spain

Motor

The Group bases its strategy on 3 pillars:
Growth

Definition of the markets that the Group targets, development
of appropriate products and services and establishment of ad-
equate distribution channels in order to reach customers.

Profitability

Recurring and sustained profitability through technical-actu-
arial rigour, diversification in investments and processes that
allow for adjusted cost ratios and quality service.

Solvency

Prioritising the generation and continuous growth of own re-
sources in order to fund the expansion of the Group, guarantee
ample compliance with the commitments assumed and ensure
adequate returns to shareholders.

« Contact and calendar 2020
* Feedback

Cultural keys

One of the major milestones for the Group in 2019
has been to continue bringing the cultural keys
closer to the entire organisation.

One of the milestones in 2016 was the start of the “Culture
Project”, where the first objective was to identify the cultural
keys of Grupo Catalana Occidente. These keys define the common
values that explain the Group's way of being and doing and
that of its entities. In the following years, the Group has ad-
dressed the cultural keys, deepening each one of them through
an annual conference involving the participation of more than
300 executives from the highest levels of responsibility. Thus,
in 2017 the focus was placed on the key 'Innovation’, in 2018 on
'People' and in 2019 on 'Self-criticism’, in 2020 it will address
‘Austerity' and training will also be provided to different groups
within the organisation.

As an example of good practice within the Group, Atradius
Créditoy Caucion is developing the Evolve+ project, whose ob-
jectives are to promote innovation and improve the connection
with customers in a personal and significant way. Evolve+ is
the continuation of the Evolve initiative, which was launched
in 2012 to support the company's commercial strategy by en-
couraging its staff to participate in continuous improvement,
increasing efficiency and raising the quality of customer service.

Pillars Cultural keys
M Gy
'::‘/D Profitability ?gzgii?mvision
0/"0 Y gﬁrﬂfitment
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Corporate responsibility

The corporate responsibility strategy of Grupo
Catalana Occidente is the framework under which
it develops its business with the criteria of creating
value for society, ethics, transparency and
commitment to legal compliance.

For the Grupo Catalana Occidente, corporate responsibility is
the voluntary commitment to integrate into its strategy a re-
sponsible management of economic, social and environmental
aspects, encourage ethical behaviour with its stakeholders,
rigorously apply the principles of good governance and con-
tribute to the well-being of society through the creation of sus-
tainable social value.

The companies of Grupo Catalana Occidente contribute to social
and economic improvement of the areas where it operates,
through business development. The nature of insurance implies
the concept of social responsibility, as it means to accompany
customers in all stages of their professional and personal life,
anticipating risks to protect them.

The Board of Directors is responsible for setting and guiding
the corporate responsibility strategy, while management in-
volves all the business areas and entities of the Group.

The commitment to transparency is materialised through the
publication of a Corporate Responsibility Report, which togeth-
erwith the Group's Policy are available on the corporate website.
The corporate responsibility committee also continued to op-
erate, this year focusing on the development of a reporting model
for non-financial information. The Committee is made up of

I:Inrp CR Report
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those responsible for the different areas that represent the in-
terest groups.

The materiality analysis was conducted in 2017 and will be
updated in 2020. The material issues identify the key matters
for the Group and its stakeholders:

1 Economic performance, profitability and solvency.
Risk management and regulatory compliance.
Corporate governance.

Ethics, integrity and transparency.

Customer experience.

Data protection. Cyber security.

Innovation.

Quality employment.

© © N O U oA W N

Professional development.
Committment to

-
©

society.

Framework of internal and external application

The commitment to compliance with human rights is channelled
through the Group’s Code of Ethics, which collects the observance
of ethical and legal principles by all employees and stakeholders
of the Group.

Externally, Grupo Catalana Occidente subscribes to the Principles
of the United Nations Global Compact and in February 2020
adhered to the Principles for Sustainability in Insurance (PSI)
and the Principles for Responsible Investment (PRI).

Furthermore, through current activity and social action, it also
supports the Sustainable Development Goals (SDG) defined by
the UN by promoting aspects such as economic growth and

 Contact and calendar 2020
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progress, equal opportunities, quality learning, energy efficiency
and health and welfare care.

In Spain, the entities of the group are also involved in the main
sectoral associations (ICEA and UNESPA) that have corporate
responsibility programmes:

Corporate Responsibility Director Plan

At the end of 2018, the Group approved a corporate responsibility
master plan based on three pillars: trust, service excellence and
positive impact. Its period of validity covers the three-year period
2019-2021.

Trust Positive impact

» Ethics and Integrity * Health and well-being

e Cultural keys < Formalise investment

« Relationship Models with in volunteering
groups of interest « Products that generate

added social value
» Environmental
Excellence in service Awareness
» Digital
Transformation
» New forms of work

« Socially responsible
investment
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Innovation

The culture, the offer and the client, main axes of
the plan of transformation of the Group.

The Group considers that a culture that embraces change and,
at the same time, encourages and motivates innovation among
employees, is a fundamental pillar in order to be able to adapt
the offer of products and services to meet the needs of all kinds
of customers. The Group has invested €66.7 million in R&D&I
activities and projects in 2019.

One of the most outstanding initiatives on that path to cultural
transformation is an intra-entrepreneurship programme, called
Xplora, released in 2017. This programme brings together train-
ing and a platform that is designed so that employees can pro-
pose ideas that enable Grupo Catalana Occidente to improve
its products and services.

In this time, employees have contributed more than 300 ideas
to the 18 proposed challenges. Of these, 100 ideas have been
supported; three are in the project phase and one of them
(Weather Alert Service) was launched as a free service for cus-
tomers during the month of March.

In addition, the Group has taken a step forward in its commit-
ment to the development of innovative culture with the launch

of inspirational and informative seminars on digital transfor-
mation and new technologies.

‘ ‘ These talks help to awaken the innovative
point you may have inside. ’ ’

6scar Alonso Ordéﬁez, Plus Ultra Seguros employee

I:In} CR Report
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The centre of the strategy: the customer

For Grupo Catalana Occidente, the customer is in the centre of
the strategy and therefore, is the motor for all of the innovation
processes. In this sense, there is constant analysis of the cus-
tomer's opinion in order to learn their needs and to be able to
offer innovative solutions adapted to their profile.

Also, the Group has a clear commitment to omni-channels, i.e.,
the customers decide the channel through which they want to
interact. In this sense, the Contact Centre transformation project
has been consolidated in 2019 with the aim of responding to
the new communication needs of customers. In this way, the
Group works to offer its customers a consistent and homoge-
neous experience on all channels.

Finally, the basic pillars (culture, offer and customer) are based
on two essential catalysts for carrying out this transformation:
data and technology. The Group is aware of the need to be pre-
pared to manage the information available to customers, in
order to offer them a better experience and greater personali-
sation. It is also working to adapt and improve the technolog-
ical systems with the objective of being prepared and agile in
order to respond to the needs of consumers.

‘ ‘ When you're in an environment that's innovative,
you jump in and join in too. We are all capable of
innovation to some extent. | think that in the Group's
culture, innovation is increasingly a key issue to move

forward ’ ’

Carlos L6pez-PéIaez, Seguros Catalana Occidente employee
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Technology and operations

The Group doubles down on its digitalisation
program.

In 2019, the efforts with regards to digital transformation were
significantly increased.

* Data Science

Artificial Intelligence and, particularly, the application of
machine learning techniques, allow for improvement of
the operative efficiency ofinternal processes and increased
quality of service for our customers. The Group has a Busi-
ness Analysis area to make the most of the advantages of-
fered by these technologies. Structured and unstructured
database projects are also being developed.

* Connected safety car

Today, new models of mobility are emerging and have
emerged that may represent a turning point for society.
One of them is the connected car model, that is to say, the
one that has Internet connection or some telematic device
or technology that allows the connectivity with it.

* Unification of platforms

A project that aims to provide a technological framework
common to all companies of traditional business in the
Group and to improve the efficiency of processes and pro-
mote technological synergies.

* Robotics
Automation projects to improve payment systems.
* "Atradius Business Transformation” Programme

The aim is to improve its offer of services and product de-
velopment to maintain the strong value proposition for
customers.
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Business Units

Traditional business

The traditional business, with a wide range of insurance prod-
ucts, mainly aimed at households and SMEs, is managed through
a dedicated network of professional agents and over 1,600 of-
fices in Spain.

The business lines offered are:

Other

4\ Multi-risk
2l

Family-home, stores, d=k Industrial Products,
communities, offices engineering, accidents and
and SMEs. civil liability.

@ Motor

Coverage for vehicles or
transport fleets

QQ Life

Life risk, life savings,
pension plans and
investment funds as well
as funeral and health.

The brands of the Group in the traditional business are:

Catalana PlusUltra
g)ccidente Seguros

eguros

Seguros ~( NorteHispana
Bilbao Seguros

I:Inr’ Main figures (Result Centre)
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Operating platforms of the Group

The entities of the traditional business share different operat-
ing platforms in order to improve efficiency and offer quality
service to customers.

Traditional business

Operating entities

Plus Ultra
Seguros

NorteHispana
Seguros

Seguros
Bilbao

Seguros
Catalana
Occidente

Platforms

Claims
centre

Computer
development

Organisation
and logistics

Post-sales
Post-sales service

Contact
Center

Systems

Focus on the service:
* Personalisation:
* Immediate resolution.
¢ Self-service.
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Credit insurance business

Through credit insurance, the Group provides products and
services that contribute to the growth of companies throughout
the world by protecting them from the default risk associated
with selling products and services with payment in instalments.
This is a business structurally linked to economic performance
and, in particular, to the performance of corporate defaults
worldwide and of the global trade volume.

The business lines offered are:

©

Credit [,' | Surety
insurance ©=00" insurance

Protects against financial Protects the beneficiary if
losses due to the inability a supplier does not comply
of a buyer to pay for goods with its contractual
purchased on credit. obligations.

N
J@ Reinsurance

Wide range of reinsurance
options for insurance
companies of the main
insurers in the world.

@D cloval

Solutions adapted in a
Global manner for
multinational companies.

The brands of the Group for credit insurance business are:

Y CréditoyCaucién

Atradius

< Atradius

Y AtradiusRe
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Corporate structure

Grupo Catalana Occidente is composed of 50 companies, mostly
involved in the insurance business. The parent company is Grupo
Catalana Occidente S.A. (with corporate address at Paseo de la
Castellana 4, 28046 Madrid), which directly and indirectly ad-
ministers and manages the investments of all Group entities.

The following table reflects the main entities included in the
consolidation perimeter of the Group at the close of 2019. All of
them have their own organisational structure and network.
From an organisational point of view they have a structure with
centralisation and decentralisation of operations, with the fol-
lowing service centres: two underwriting centres, six claims
centres, an administrative centre and a call centre.

On 14 February 2019, the Catalana Occidente Group executed
the contract for the sale of Seguros de Vida y Pensiones Antares
S.A., aninsurance subsidiary of Telefénica, as indicated on page
15. Later on 20 June 2019, it was agreed to merge Plus Ultra
Seguros and Antares through the absorption of the latter, which
was executed on 31 December.
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Grupo Catalana Occidente - Principal entities

Seguros Catalana Occidente

Tecniseguros

« Contact and calendar 2020

GCO Gestion de Activos

Seguros Bilbao

Bilbao Vida

GCO Gestora de Pensiones

NorteHispana Seguros

S. Orbita

Catoc SICAV

Plus Ultra Seguros

Previsora Bilbaina Agencia de Seguros

Bilbao Hipotecaria

GCO Re

Bilbao Telemark

Sogesco

Inversions Catalana Occident

Hercasol SICAV

CO Capital Ag. Valores

GCO Activos Inmobiliarios

Cosalud Servicios

GCO Tecnologia y Servicios

Prepersa

GCO Contact Center

Asitur Asistencia

Grupo Asistea

Atradius Crédito y Caucion

Atradius Collections

Grupo Compaiiia Espaiiola Crédito
y Caucion S.L.

Atradius Re

Atradius Dutch State Business

Atradius NV

Atradius ATCI

Atradius Information Services

Atradius Participations Holding

Atradius Seguros de Crédito México

Iberinform Internacional

Atradius Finance

Atradius Rus Credit Insurance

Graydon

Crédito y Caucion Seguradora de
Crédito e Grantias Brazil

Insurance companies

Traditional business Credit insurance business

Complementary insurance
companies

Investment companies
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Corporate governance

Best practices

In 2019, the Group has continued
with a corporate governance model,
aligned with international best
practices, that commits
transparency, rigour and
accountability.

< Corporate governance / Best practices | 39 >
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Corporate governance model

The Board of Directors continues to focus its
activity according to the principles of good
governance.

The government bodies of Grupo Catalana Occidente have the
goal of providing management and control structures that are
suitable to protect the interests of shareholders, to monitor
compliance with the strategy for society and to ensure the cre-
ation of value and the efficient use of resources in a transparent
framework of information.

The Group applies practically all recommendations from the
Code of Good Governance by the National Securities Market
Commission (CNMV) for listed entities as well as advanced
practices in corporate governance.

The main functions of the government bodies are described in
more detail in the Corporate Governance Report attached and
on the corporate website.

General Shareholders Meeting

The General Meeting is the body that represents the sharehold-
ers. Its operation and action is regulated by the articles of as-
sociation and the Regulations of the General Shareholders
Meeting. One of its main functions is to approve the accounts
and the application of the result. In the Group there are no re-
strictions on the right to vote and each share is entitled to one
vote.

The next General Shareholders' Meeting has been called for 30
April 2020 at 5.00 p.m. in Madrid, at first call In order to facil-

I:Inr’ Regulation available on the website I:Inrp SFCR
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itate the participation of all shareholders, the Group provides
a digital debate forum as well as electronic methods that facil-
itate distance voting and the delegation of representation.

General Shareholders Meeting

Board of Directors

Management Committee of
Grupo Catalana Occidente

Traditional Credit insurance
business business
1st line
‘ of defence
Seguros Plus Ultra Atradius
Catalana Occidente Seguros Crédito y Caucién
Seguros NorteHispana Atradius Re
Bilbao Seguros
Verification of Risk control Actuarial 2nd line
compliance management ETEm of defence
function function
Internal audit 3rdline
q f defi
function oraetence
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Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is the maximum management and su-
pervision authority in the Group. The guiding principle for action
is to delegate the ordinary management to the management
team and to concentrate the activity on the supervision function
which includes, among others:

¢ Strategic responsibility: direct the policies.
* Supervision responsibility: control management.

* Communication responsibility: serve as a link between
shareholders.

Its operation and action is regulated by the articles of associa-
tion and the Regulation of the Board of Directors. At year-end,
the board of directors consisted of 16 directors, of which 10 were
proprietary directors, 2 are independent and 4 are executive
directors. During the year 2019, the Board of Directors has met
11 times, where it has revised, been informed and, where ap-
plicable, made decisions regarding the financial position and
results, strategic plan, acquisition operations, policies and risk
control, among other issues.

Board of Directors

Vice Chair
Gestion de Activos y Valores S.L.
Javier Juncadella Salisachs

Chairman
* José Maria Serra Farré

Chief Executive Officer
* José Ignacio Alvarez Juste

Secretary director
* Francisco José Arregui
Laborda
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Members
Jorge Enrich Izard

** Juan Ignacio Guerrero Gilabert
Federico Halpern Blasco

** Francisco Javier
Pérez Farguell

* Hugo Serra Calderén
Maria Assumpta Soler Serra

Cotyp, S. L
Alberto Thiebaut Estrada

Ensivest Bros 2014, S. L.
Jorge Enrich Serra

*Executive directors **Independent

Delegate committees:
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Enrique Giré Godé

Jusal, S. L.

José Maria Juncadella Sala
Lacanuda Consell, S. L
Carlos Halpern Serra

Villasa, S. L
Fernando Villavecchia Obregén

Non-Secretary Vice-Chair
Joaquin Guallar Pérez

The Board of Directors has two delegated committees: the Audit
Committee and the Appointments and Remunerations

Committee.

Audit Committee

Chairman
Juan Ignacio Guerrero Gilabert

Members
Francisco Javier Pérez Farguell
Lacanuda Consell, S. L

05 Corporate governance
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The Board of Directors has appointed an audit committee in
accordance with the provisions of Additional Provision 3 of the
Audit Act. Its composition and regulation is established in the
Regulations of the Board of Directors.

Appointments and Remunerations Committee

Members
Juan Ignacio Guerrero Gilabert
Gestion de Activos y Valores S.L.

Chairman
Francisco Javier Pérez Farguell

I;ln:P Corporate governance report
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The Appointments and Remuneration Committee ensures,
among other matters, that the candidate selection processes for
board members do not suffer from implicit biases that hinder
diversity, making suggestions or informing the Board of
Directors, as corresponding, with complete objectivity and re-
spect for the principle of equality, under the framework of their
professional roles, experience and knowledge.

Management committee (first line of defence)

Grupo Catalana Occidente has a corporate management com-
mittee that directs and coordinates the day-to-day management
of the Group. Also, the individual principal insurance entities
that form part of the Group have their own management com-
mittee.

These committees meet monthly on a corporate level and each
fortnight on an entity level in order to take actions relative to
the operating system.

External Audit

The firm PriceWaterhouseCoopers Auditores, S.L., performs the
individual external audit of the Society and the consolidated
Group, as well as of the majority of the entities that form part
of it. This brings global homogeneity between all audits and, in
particular, with regards to the financial information systems.

In Note 20d of the report and in the Corporate Governance report,
the remuneration paid to the auditors is listed both in concept
of auditing services and other services. The entire contents of
the annual reports, of the notes to the report and the auditor’s
report is available at: www.cnmv.es and at www.grupocatala-
naoccidente.com, within the section dedicated to investors and
analysts, in the economic information section.

 Contact and calendar 2020
* Feedback

Assessment of the board and the committees

Following the recommendations of good corporate governance,
by the CNMV, during the year 2018 an external evaluation was
carried out by KPMG in the role of independent expert on the
operation of the Board of Directors, on the delegated committees
and on the performance of the chairman.

The result was positive, highlighting both the adequacy of the
procedures and the functioning of the bodies, although the in-
dependent expert issued a series of recommendations that the
Board has followed up on, many of which were complied with
during the current year.

Information and transparency

The Board of Directors has approved the management report,
corporate governance report and report on remuneration of
members of the Board of Directors corresponding to the year
2019, following the guidelines established by the regulations
in relation to the transparency of listed entities.

Through the shareholders and investors portal on the corporate
website, it is possible to access the corporate governance report
and the remuneration report, which contain detailed informa-
tion on the Board of Directors, its operation and the remuner-
ation of its members during the year.

Corporate governance / Best practices | 41

)



Table of Contents / Letter from the Chairman / Management report / Consolidated Financial Statements / Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements / Auditor’s Opinion / Corporate Governance Report

Annual Report for
Grupo Catalana Occidente, S. A. 2019

03 Results in 2019
04 Business model

01 Annual panorama
02 Grupo Catalana Occidente in 2019

Key functions (2nd and 3rd line of defence)

Control of risk management function
Supports the board of directors and the management commit-
tee with identification, assessment and control of all risks.

e Supports for the board of directors in the annual establish-
ment of the appetite and risk tolerance for the Group and
its main businesses.

e It follows up on the prospective risk assessment.
* Periodic monitoring of the risk profile and threats.

Verification of compliance function

Ensures compliance with the obligations that affect the organ-
isation of the Group, including both the regulations of manda-
tory application as well as those assumed on a voluntary basis,
including the legal, regulatory and administrative provisions
affecting the Group, as well as its own internal regulations.

Actuarial function
Exercises the powers conferred by the regulations.

* Expresses an opinion on the technical provisions.
* Assesses the quality of the data used.

* Expressesanopiniononthe suitability of the technical pro-
visions included in the ORSA.

* Expresses an opinion on the subscription policy.
* Expresses an opinion on the reinsurance policy.

Internal audit function

Directly reports to the audit committee as a delegate committee
of the board of directors and exercises maximum supervision
of the Group's internal control. In 2019 the Group carried out a
total of 102 audits, including 4 on aspects of Solvency II, 8 on
processes of the internal control system for the generation of

I:Inrp Code of ethics I{lr, Internal Code of Conduct.
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financial information (SCIIF) and 3 on the prevention of money
laundering and financing of terrorism.

In total, over 313 opinions have been issued, 96% of which are
at least in the satisfactory category. .

Remuneration policy

This is oriented towards the recurring generation of value and
sustainability of results over time. It also seeks to align the
interests of the directors and employees with those of the Group's
stakeholders together with prudent risk management in such
a way as to be reasonable with the size of the Group, its eco-
nomic situation and the market standards of comparable com-
panies.

This policy is approved for three-year periods (unless there are
amendments to it) by the General Shareholders’ Meeting. Three
years having passed since the last time it was approved, the
Board of Directors has approved the submission to the General
Shareholders' Meeting of a new, continuous policy for the three-
year period 2020-2022. Likewise, the annual report on remu-
neration to the Board of Directors is published annually and
submitted to the consultative vote of the General Shareholders'
Meeting, which includes the remuneration received by both the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Principles of the policy
* To create long term value.

* To compensate the achievement of results based on pru-
dent and responsible risk assumption.

¢ To attract and retain the best professionals.
* To reward the level of responsibility.
* To ensure internal equality and external competitiveness.

I{'I? See Table 7 for non-financial information
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Terms and Conditions

The members of the Board of Directors in their roles as such,
have perceived remunerations, in the concept of statutory at-
tentions and daily subsistence allowances for attendance at
meetings. In turn, the executive directors have signed, in ac-
cordance with the trade regulations, their corresponding con-
tracts which include, among other elements, and as appropri-
ate, a fixed remuneration, variable remuneration (one different
portion), payment in kind and a system of complementary social
security.

In Note 20Db of the report and in the remuneration report, the
amounts paid to the members of the Board of Directors for all
of the above concepts are listed.

Policy of aptitude and honour

The corporate governance of the Group not only involves the
Board of Directors and other governing bodies, but also extends
to all aspects of the organisation and teams.

The Group, through a proper and transparent policy for remu-
neration and aptitude and honour, ensures that the positions
are held by the suitable people.

Aptitude

It is understood that the professional is suitable if they have
the training and the right profile to perform the functions en-
trusted to them, as well as practical experience derived from
previous jobs with functions similar to those to be undertaken.
In order to evaluate its aptitude, the Human Resources
Management defines an ideal type of qualification, knowledge
and experience for each role and evaluates the aptitude through
the corresponding supporting documentation.
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Honour

The process for determining honour is performed by the Human

Resources Management and the Group’s Regulatory Compliance

Unit. The evaluation of honourableness includes an assessment

of their honesty and financial solvency based on reliable infor-
mation on their reputation.

In conformance with the applicable regulations, the Group pro-
vides both the corresponding insurance supervisor and, where

applicable, the CNMV or the Bank of Spain, as corresponding,
all of the information regarding appointments and terminations

of strategic personnel.

I:In} Code of ethics I{lr, Internal Code of Conduct.
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Ethical framework

The Group's code of ethics promotes responsible
and transparent management, considers people to
be the greatest asset and places the customer in the
centre of the activity.

The Group’s code of ethics, formulated and approved by the
Board of Directors, is the document that establishes the guide-
lines that preside over the ethical behaviour of the directors,
employees, agents and collaborators of Grupo Catalana Occidente
in their daily work, with regards to the relationships and inter-
actions they maintain with the groups of interest.

This Code, developed through different protocols, has been pe-
riodically renewed in order to adapt to the new realities faced
by the Group and includes, systematises and publishes its prin-
ciples and values for action in line with the cultural keys of the
Group, including the commitments assumed in reference to good
governance and issues related to ethics and regulatory compli-
ance and, in particular, the actions related to corruption and
bribery, compliance with human rights, respect for people, pro-
fessional development, equal opportunities, the relationship
with collaborating companies, occupational health and safety
and respect for the environment, among others.

The Code of Ethics includes, among others, the actions of those
responsible for law enforcement by Grupo Catalana Occidente,
the actions upon receipt of judicial documentation or in the case
of receiving an inspection, as well as the manual for procedures
and selection of suppliers and the channel for claims against
fraud and irregularities.

 Contact and calendar 2020
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Communication and monitoring

The Code of Ethics is communicated to the entire staff through
the intranet of each of the Group entities, receiving the appro-
priate training in this regard, and it must also be assumed by
all employees of the Group entities. This Code of Ethics can be
consulted on the Group's corporate website.

The Group has safeguards in place to ensure compliance with
the Code of Ethics, including a channel for complaints and ir-
regularities through which such complaints and possible vio-
lations can be managed.

Furthermore, the Group avails of various policies and internal
regulations on behaviour for specific topics such as:

¢ Internalbehavioural regulationregarding the Stock Market

* Qutsourcing Policy and Procedures and Supplier Selection
Manual.

* Prevention of money laundering and funding of terrorism
manual

This management model also establishes that the Audit com-
mittee and the Management Committee receive periodic reports
on the actions in this area.
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Compliance and prevention
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Operating in a highly regulated sector makes the
verification of compliance function essential.
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Potential cyber attacks are considered one of the principal
risks in the sector. This is why the Group has continued to
prepare ti have a Chief Information Security Officer during
2019.

During the year, the Group did not receive any claims re-
lated to customer privacy violations from third parties nor
cases of filtrations, theft or loss of customer data. Nor has

 Contact and calendar 2020
* Feedback

* Reliability of the financial information

Following the recommendations of the CNMV about the
Internal Control System of Financial Reporting (SCIIF) in
2019, the Group has continued in strengthening the relia-
bility of the financial reporting released through the docu-
mentation of the processes, the homogenization of criteria
and the reflection on efficiency improvements.

Regulatory compliance the Group received any substantiated claims regarding
violations of customer privacy and/or security breaches
with loss of personal data from the relevant regulatory

authorities

Internal control

* Prevention of money laundering and funding of terrorism

The Group has a manual for the prevention of money
laundering and the financing of terrorism, which sets out,
among other matters, all the measures implemented by the
Group entities subject to the regulations on the prevention
of money laundering and the financing of terrorism.

¢ Fight against fraud and corruption . .
ightagal . uptt The system is based on a solid culture of control where the

fundamental principles are clearly defined and notified to all
levels of the organisation. The internal control system is subject
to an independent monitoring process that verifies proper op-
eration over time. Comprehensive system monitoring is per-
formed by the management of the internal audit.

The Group has procedures to combat fraud, which help to
identify possible malicious acts or omissions in purchasing
the insurance policies, in the statement of claims, or in the
accreditation of damages, which are designed to obtainim-
proper benefits, money laundering or unjust enrichment.

These measures are subject to annual review by an external
expert who prepares a report and has considered that the
Group has a satisfactory prevention system. The board of
directors examines this report, together with proposals of
necessary measures, to address the weaknesses identified.
No reports of money laundering have been received.

Likewise, the Code of Ethics and its development protocols
establish the policy of action in anti-corruption matters,
expressly prohibiting activities such as extortion, bribery
and influence peddling, as well as indicating how to act
in the event of acceptance or granting of gifts, donations
and contributions to foundations and non-governmental
organisations, among other actions.

Within the control environment, the Group focuses on controls
for financial and property investments. In this sense, the con-
centration and dispersal of fixed income and equity, the average
rating of the portfolio, exposures by rating and how they have
changed, changes in the optionality of assets due to changes in
interest rates, and the performance of underlying assets are
monitored at monthly intervals.

Aspart of the prevention system, the Group hasimplement-
ed an annual training plan for its employees in this area.

¢ Data protection. Cyber security
The Group also has areporting channel that allows any em-

ployee to inform the Corporate Internal Audit Department
of conduct that may involve the commission of criminal
acts within the Group.

The Group entities have a personal data protection policy
and a prevention policy, among others, approved by the
Board of Directors, which coordinates the data protection
committee and its delegates.

In addition, in 2019 more progress was made regarding im-
proving the quality of the risk map. In total, the Group avails of
over 5,000 internal controls.

In 2019, 51 incidents of fraud were detected for an amount
of €539,333 in terms of contracting, claims and others that
represent 0.01% of the turnover.

Corporate governance / Best practices | 44

I;I"r? SFCR

I:In} See information and transparency link

)


https://www.grupocatalanaoccidente.com/es-ES/accionistas-e-inversores/gobierno-corporativo-consejo-administracion/documentacion.aspx
https://www.grupocatalanaoccidente.com/~/media/Files/G/Grupo-Catalana-Occidente/documents/Solvencia/2018/20180618_SFCR_GCO_Consolidado.pdf

Table of Contents / Letter from the Chairman / Management report / Consolidated Financial Statements / Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements / Auditor’s Opinion / Corporate Governance Report

Annual Report for
Grupo Catalana Occidente, S. A. 2019

03 Results in 2019
04 Business model

01 Annual panorama
02 Grupo Catalana Occidente in 2019

Risk management

The strategy and policies for risk management by
Grupo Catalana Occidente are under the
responsibility of the Board of Directors of the
company.

Risk management system
This is based on the principle of “three lines of defence:

1st line - Taking responsibility for risks.

This consists of the business units that are responsible for the
risk assumed and management of the same.

2nd line - Control and monitoring.

This consists of the role of risk management control, verification
of regulatory compliance and actuarial function. It defines con-
trols that permit ensuring compliance with the processes and
policies for risk management.

3rd line - Internal audit function.

The function of the internal audit is responsible for carrying
out an independent evaluation of the effectiveness of the gov-
ernment system, the risk management system and the internal
control.

From the risk management control area, all significant aspects
relative to risk management are handled, marking guidelines
and reference criteria that are assumed by the entities with the
adaptations necessary.

Information and communication
The government bodies receive information relative to the

quantification of the principal risks the Group is exposed to
and the capital resources available to face these with a frequen-

I:Tp SFCR
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cy of at least once per quarter, as well as the information rela-
tive to compliance with the limits established for risk appetite.

Since 2016, with an annual nature, the Group and the insurance
entities that form part of it publish a specific report on the fi-
nancial and solvency situation which details and quantifies the
risks they are exposed to.

Risk strategy

Grupo Catalana Occidente defines its risk strategy as the level
of risk that the entities that form part of it are willing to assume,
and ensures that the integration of the same with the business
plan permits compliance with the risk appetite approved by
the Board of Directors.

Grupo Catalana Occidente has defined the following concepts
for risk management.

} Risk profile
Risk assumed in terms of solvency.

> Risk appetite
Risk in terms of solvency that the entities that form the Group plan
to accept to achieve their objectives.

P> Risk tolerance
Maximum deviation with respect to the appetite that is willing to
be assumed (tolerate).

P> Risk limits
Operating limits established to comply with risk strategy.

} Alert indicators
In addition, the Group avails of a series of early alert indicators that
work as a base for both monitoring the risks and for complying
with the risk appetite approved by the Board of Directors.

 Contact and calendar 2020
* Feedback

Business strategy and ORSA

The business strategy is defined in the Group’s strategic plan
and the medium-term plan, which is aligned with the strategy.
The ORSA is carried out at least once a year and evaluates:

* Compliance with the capital requirements.
¢ Deviation between the risk and solvency profiles.

* Compliance with the capital requirements in adverse sit-
uations.

The ORSA contributes towards spreading a common risk culture
and provides a prospective vision of the risks and solvency
position in the medium-term plan framework.

The Group performs a back-testing analysis between the esti-
mates of the capital requirements for the year, ORSA and its
results at the end of the year.

Policies for risk management

The Group has written policies which, together with the exist-
ing technical standards, it has reviewed and approved during
the financial year 2019. The policies are available in Table 12
of the Non-Financial Information Statement.

Each of these identify the own risks of each affected area, es-
tablishes risk quantification measures, determines actions to
supervise and control said risks, establishes measures to mit-
igate the impact of the same and determines the information
and internal control systems to control and manage the risks.

Corporate governance / Best practices | 45

)


https://www.grupocatalanaoccidente.com/~/media/Files/G/Grupo-Catalana-Occidente/documents/Solvencia/2018/20180618_SFCR_GCO_Consolidado.pdf

Annual Report for
Grupo Catalana Occidente, S. A. 2019

Table of Contents / Letter from the Chairman / Management report / Consolidated Financial Statements / Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements / Auditor’s Opinion / Corporate Governance Report

03 Results in 2019
04 Business model

 Contact and calendar 2020
* Feedback

01 Annual panorama 07 Non-financial information statement

02 Grupo Catalana Occidente in 2019

05 Corporate governance

06 Commitment to stakeholders * Glossary

Risk map During the year, the company has continued toimproveandin  to the risks derived from Brexit, commercial tensions between
particularis analysing the risks not measured by the standard  China and the United States, cyber-risk and data protection.
formula or the internal model. Special attention has been paid

Description Regulation Mitigation Impactin 2019
Social, Risks arising from the national and international Underwriting regulations, written policies (in Underwriting risk, Internal Audit, Internal Control, Claims See section 7: relationship with groups of
environmental and economic, political and social environment and particular investment policy) and Complaints Channel, Occupational Health and Safety interest.
tainability risk from the new habits of society Specifically this Internal Code of Conduct. Area and strategic plan process and sector analysis
sustainability risks year, Brexit, a lax monetary policy with minimum Corporate Social Responsibility Unit
interest rates, slower world economic growth and
an aging population, stands out.

Non-life Control of subscription and claims through strict Subscription and reserve policies. Reinsurance and strict control of the combined ratio. Claims ratio in traditional business of 90.4%.

underwriting control of combined ratio and default credit risk, Reinsurance policy. Maintenance of the business diversification. Claims ratio in credit insurance of 73.4%.

isk also supported on the reinsurance policies. Manual and technical standards for subscription. For risk quantification, see SFCR.

ris Data quality policy.

Life, health Control of subscription, of claims and portfolio Subscription and reserve policies. Reinsurance and strict control of the risk subscription. For risk quantification, see SFCR.

and funeral business value, also supported on the reinsurance policies. Reinsurance policy.

d iti isk Manual and technical standards for subscription.

underwriting ris! Data quality policy.

Life, health Detailed analysis of asset-liability management Investment policy. Management of assets based on principle of prudence. Financial result for net income of 0.8% impacted

risk (ALM), analysis, and sensitivity analysis for future Management based on principle of prudence. *Control of different types of portfolio and objectives. by maintenance of reduced interest rates and

scenarios. Asset and liability evaluation policy. *Commitments of liabilities to cover. exchange differences.
*Typology of investments considered suitable for Non-recurring result of -€25.8 million due to
investment. impairment in value of two subsidiaries.
*Diversification limits and credit rating to be maintained. For risk quantification, see SFCR.
Counterparty Control of credit rating for the principal financial Reinsurance policy. Reinsurance with counterparties with good credit rating. No impact.
risk counterparties and rating of the reinsurance Investment policy. Diversified investment portfolio with high rating. Average reinsurer rating of “A”.
panel. Monitoring of risk exposure for commercial Average investment portfolio rating of “BBB”".
credit. For risk quantification, see SFCR.
Operational Control of inherent risk and residual risk through Contingency plans. Implementation of an efficient internal control system. No impact.
and regulatory the implementation of preventive controls and Data quality and safety policy. Positive result of the “cyber risk attacks”.
li isk mitigation in the case of occurrence of an event. Code of ethics. For risk quantification, see SFCR.
compliance ris Includes risk non-compliance Procedure for action in cases of irregularities and There have not been any events of regulatory

Regulation and evaluation of the impact of any fraud (report channel). non-compliance but there are still significant
change in the legal environment. Internal Code of Conduct. imminent regulatory changes:

Verification of regulatory compliance policy.

Prevention of money laundering and funding of

terrorism Externalisation policy.

Cyber risk / data protection.

Liquidity risk Control of liquidity in the companies and the Investment policy. Low debt ratio. Over €1,800 million in liquid assets and deposits.

obligations. For risk quantification, see SFCR.

Strategic risk Controlled by the Board of Directors and the Strategic plan and medium-term plan. Continuous monitoring of the regulatory frameworks, Solvency ratio of 200%, slightly higher than the

management committee through the Strategic allowing the entity to adopt the best practices and most European average.
Plan and the guidelines of the Group. efficient and rigorous criteria for implementation. Favourable performance of solvency publication

Reputation Continuous improvement of customer service and Procedure for action for irregularities. ::reqluent ctort1'tact \?”th t?fg I"atl:g fgenTles. trol syst flngnaalt stia\terlnents and tax risk management

risk the image of the Group and the risks that may Code of behaviour. mplementation of an efricient internal control system. .’;nl'tc_onl rg[ p(t)' icy. Spai

have an impact on the Group. Code of ethics. olitical situation in >pain.
Policy of aptitude and honour.
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Commitment
with the stakeholders

In constant dialogue

A Group identified and committed to
its stakeholders

* Feedback
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Creation of value Society
The vocation of Grupo Catalana Occidente is to Specific commitments

consolidate a solid business and generate
sustainable social value. In 2019, the Group
contributed €4,034 million to society.

Sustainable social value is the result of focusing the Group’s
activity not only on obtaining good financial results but also
on favouring the well-being of the people that form part of the
interest groups and society as a whole in the short and long
term.

In 2019, the Group contributed €4,034 million to society, with

customers being the main group of interest with 61.0% of the
total.

2015 1843

308- 423 I 77

328- 443 I 83

479 I88
95

2018 2,252 407 - 481 I

2016 2,188

2017 2,255 348

2019 2,462 465

500 I101

} Provisions provided to customers Public Administrations

} Intermediaries Employees } Shareholders

u;lnj CR Report {'ﬂ FJS Report

® Proactive cooperation with entities in the
3__| insurance sector and other associations.
|= ® Contribute to the well-being of the groups
of interest.

Sl

Communication channels.
» * Corporate websites and social networks.
® Fundacién Jesus Serra magazine.
® Fundacién Jesus Serra website and social networks.

-
N,

The Group also bases its business model on respect for people

and on generating economic development, well-being and work
stability for over a century. In parallel, its social action is artic-
ulated through the Fundacién Jesus Serra. Its budget in 2019

was €2.3 million.

The entities of the Group invest, furthermore, in initiatives re-
lated to the territories they operate it, with its historic past and

own entity. At Seguros Catalana Occidente we can highlight the

support of the Symphonic Orchestra of Sant Cugat and the

Auditorium. Plus Ultra Seguros focuses on the support of sport-
ing disciplines such as paddle tennis or basketball from a wheel-
chair. In turn, Seguros Bilbao focuses on cultural sponsorships

such as the Guggenheim Museum or Ship Museum. Atradius

Créditoy Caucion invests in projects that are strongly linked to

the business, such as initiatives that support the business de-
velopment. Altogether, the amount destined to these projects

reached €952 million.

Grupo Catalana Occidente S.A. did not receive any amount that
could be considered a "public subsidy" during the year. This
concept includes loans granted by public administrations and

qlnr? See Table 8 for non-financial information

« Contact and calendar 2020
* Feedback

their dependent bodies, whether they are repayable or non-re-
payable in full or in part, loans with zero or below-market in-
terest.

Fundacion Jests Serra

Fundacién Jesus Serra is a private non-profit entity created in
memory of Jesus Serra Santamans, well-known businessman
and patron, founder of Grupo Catalana Occidente, which is in-
tended to give support and promote initiatives of a cultural,
business, education, music, sports, research and charity type.

»<{y- Fundacién
*(*YI Jesiis Serra

Catalana Occidente

‘ ‘ The Fundacion Jestis Serra Research Award is a recognition of the
work of many professionals who try to prevent and treat the health
problems suffered by our current society ’ ’

Salvador Aznar, researcher at the Catalan Institute for Research and Advanced Studies
(ICREA) and the Institute for Research in Biomedicine of Barcelona (IRB Barcelona)
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Employees

Specific commitments
® Equal opportunities

|-=I ®  Fair payment

® Permanent training
=
o

Sl

Communication channels.

® Corporate internet for companies
® Announcement boards and suggestion boxes.
® Employee representatives

Training

During the 2019 financial year, the Group has maintained the

training actions aimed at professional development, in line with

the provisions of the Training Plan. This plan is established

annually on the basis of the Group's Strategic Plan, the training

needs analysis questionnaires sent to each general sub-direc-
torate and the specific training needs derived from profession-
al evaluations. Also noteworthy in the traditional business is

the Training and Professional Development Committee, made

up of the head of Professional Development and the training

managers of the various traditional business companies.

In the credit business, there is "Atradius Academy" a learning

platform available to all employees of the credit business where

they can find a wide selection of online courses. This year, the

strategy for the platform has been updated and new courses

have been included. In total, at Group level more than 149,000

hours of training have been carried out, an average of 18 hours

per employee

Professional development

The Grupo Catalana Occidente is committed to the profession-
al development of its employees, promoting the capacities of

I:Inrp CR Report

05 Corporate governance
06 Commitment to stakeholders

07 Non-financial information statement
* Glossary

the new generations of professionals who, in the medium and
long term, will occupy positions of responsibility, and updating
the skills of the most expert professionals, to adapt them to the
new challenges of the business environment.

Throughout 2019, the construction and validation of a job lev-
elling model common to all companies continued in the tradi-
tional business as a necessary management tool for establish-
ing professional development itineraries, a model that has
already been developed in the credit business. Likewise, in the
traditional business, also based on the Management Skills Model
defined in 2018, an analysis of management skills based on a
360° model has been carried out for the entire management
level of the Group, in addition to maintaining the professional
evaluation that affects technicians and managers. In the same
vein, the credit business already has a system of job levelling,
and has been using a system of professional evaluation and
analysis of potential for development that are part of the human
resource management systems and are already consolidated.

Equal opportunities.

The Grupo Catalana Occidente integrates in its business strat-
egy the corporate social responsibility policies focused on a
responsible and transparent management. The behaviour of
all its members is based on ethical behaviour based on good
faith and integrity as set out in the principles of action formal-
ised in the Code of Ethics: the principle of integrity and hones-
ty, the principle of impartiality, the principle of transparency,
the principle of confidentiality, the principle of professionalism
and the principle of corporate social responsibility.

In this line, no type of discrimination is permitted based on
birth, sex, religion, opinion or any other personal or social con-
dition or circumstance. Respect for human rights is also guar-
anteed.

I;‘“:, See tables 1to 7 and 9 to 11 for non-financial information
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In addition, companies of significant size have an Equality Plan
and a Protocol for the prevention and treatment of sexual har-
assment on the grounds of gender and moral harassment. The
Equality Commission is responsible for ensuring compliance.
The general objectives of these plans are:

a) Topromote the principle of equal treatment between men
and women, guaranteeing the same professional oppor-
tunities in employment, selection, remuneration, training,
development, promotion and working conditions.

b) To guarantee the absence of direct or indirect discrimina-
tion on the basis of gender and, especially, those derived
from maternity, paternity, the assumption of family obli-
gations, marital status and working conditions.

©) To prevent all types of abuse, particularly sexual harass-
mentand gender-based harassment, implementing a code
of behaviour that protects the entire human team.

d) To promote equal opportunities through communication
and awareness on all organisational levels.

e) To favour conciliation of the professional, personal and
family life of the whole team.

It should be noted that the composition of the staff is generally
gender balanced. Although the functions of greater responsi-
bility are mostly occupied by men, in recent years, a positive
trend has begun to emerge towards achieving a balance.

The Group is also committed to the employment integration of
people with disabilities. At the end of the year, 92 people with
different abilities were on the Group's payroll. The companies
Seguros Catalana Occidente, GCO Tecnologia vy Servicios, Plus
Ultra Seguros, Seguros Bilbao, have been awarded the certificate
of exceptionality granted by the State Public Employment
Service, under the provisions of Royal Decree 364/2005, of 8
April, which regulates the alternative fulfilment of the reserve
quota in favour of disabled workers on an exceptional basis.
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In 2019, the Group has not recorded any cases of discrimination,
although there has been one case of human rights violations.

Healthy Company

Grupo Catalana Occidente is concerned about the well-being of
its employees, promoting sport and healthy living. Last year
the Healthy Company initiative was launched, with the out-
standing milestone of the remodelling of the Club Catalana
Occidente, in Sant Cugat del Vallés, and with the aim of carrying
out similar actions in the rest of the Group's entities.

Internal Communication

The Group maintains constant communication with our em-
ployees, making sure to keep them informed about the future
of the business and about any information relevant to the Group
and its entities. For this purpose, there are corporate intranets
as the principal tools for internal communication accessible to
all employees. In this regard, at the beginning of the year the
documents summarising the Group's strategic plan, as well as
the guidelines for each year, are published and are accessible
to all employees.

Reconciliation and co-responsibility of

both parents

In their commitment to equal opportunities and work-life bal-
ance, the companies adhering to the Collective Bargaining
Agreement, which affects practically all traditional business
entities, offer a flexible timetable that allows them to accumu-
late hours for future free use and an intensive working day in
the summer months, as well as the option of voluntary leave
for one year with a guarantee of re-entry.

Likewise, these companies offer social benefits such as a per-
manence prize, retirement prize, birth prize, help for disabled
relatives, life insurance above the conditions of the collective
agreement of the insurance sector and personal loans.
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On the other hand, the company GCO Contact Centre has start-
ed the teleworking modality for some workers and plans to
increase the number of workers in teleworking situation pro-
gressively.

At Atradius NV, measures to facilitate and encourage work-life
balance are subject to regulation in each country.

In 2019, a disconnection policy was approved for the companies
of the Catalana Occidente Group.

Fair payment

During 2019, progress has been made in having a common
remuneration policy in the traditional business, with a wide
variety of flexible remuneration products, including the annual
offer of remuneration by shares for the staff of the insurance
activity. Likewise, employees have an extensive programme
of social benefits, including pension plans, company canteens,
financing of employee training (university education, MBA,
languages), help for disabled relatives, personal loans, etc.

Union representation and collective bargaining in Spain

The continuous dialogue between the organisation and the

employee representatives is articulated through the Company
Committees and Trade Unions with whom the companies main-
tain fluid communication, with periodic meetings addressing

the issues related to working conditions, equality, prevention

of occupational hazards, professional recognition, etc., and the

existence of committees designed to address specific topics such

as Health and Safety,Professional classification Pension or

Equality Plans, whose committee ensures compliance with the

equality plans.

This year has seen the consolidation of the application of the
same working conditions for all the employees of the companies
that have signed the Collective Bargaining Agreement that af-
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fects practically all the insured business entities. Within the

same, working conditions have been established that are

common to all staff in the insurance sector that have integrated

activities and share the same operating functions that highlight

consolidation for all employees in a system of social prevention

with annual contributions corresponding to 5% of the fixed salary.
In addition, the remuneration systems of the integrated com-
panies were integrated in the recent period, establishing a system

of professional classification that establishes the same conditions

for the same functions, which is a guarantee of equity.

In addition, this year the company GCO Contact Centre has
reached an agreement with the representation of workers in
the Madrid area to establish measures aimed at resolving the
discomfort detected in the report on psychosocial risks in the
Madrid workplace and improving the reconciliation of family
life, along the same lines as those agreed with the representa-
tion of workers in the Sant Cugat area at the end of 2018. At
present, both work centres have an equivalent agreement that
has allowed stability in the management of the activity and a
good social climate.

In European countries, the percentage of employees under the
Collective Bargaining Agreement is over 95%, except in the UK
(89%).

With regard to collective bargaining agreements, Atradius N.V.
is in constant dialogue with the trade unions in each country
and the works councils, and in the case of the EU also with the
EWC (European Works Council).
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Specific commitments
® Develop competitive products

® Excellence in service

Communication channels.

- .
N é, ° Customer service
L]

Web
® Mediation network.

® Transparent and integral personal advice.

2018 2019 Chg.
::mber of policyholders 3324450 3,340,350 | 0.48%
Private policyholders 2,968,729 2,982,812 0.47%
Company policyholders 355,721 357,538 0.51%
Customer experience in traditional business 2018 2019
NPS o o
Level of promotion suggested 34le  396%
PER * o o
Customer intention to remain ILa% - 818%
ISC* o 0
Level of company satisfaction 903%  86.2%
SSR o 0
Service satisfaction rate 62.5%  65.5%
* North-Hispanic Range
Customer experience from credit insurance 2018 2019
Customer retention rate 971% 973%
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The Group’s entities are adhered to the guide for good transpar-
ency practices of Unespa

Customer service

In 2019, the entities of the Group received, through their cus-
tomer service channels, a total of 4,636 claims, which represents
an increase of 18% compared to 2018. The increase in the total
number of claims compared to 2018 is due, on the one hand, to
the incorporation of a new company to the Group (Seguros de
Vida vy Pensiones Antares, S.A.) and, on the other hand, to the
fact that this year, with respect to Seguros Catalana Occidente,
S.A. de Seguros y Reaseguros, the complaints received by ex-
ternal/third party services as a complement to the insurance
activity and which were previously scattered in terms of atten-
tion and resolution among the Service Centres and the media-
tors themselves, were also recorded. 82% were admitted for
investigation, with 33% being resolved in favour of the custom-
er, 5% reaching another agreement and 62% being in favour of
the entity.

In the credit insurance in 2019 work continues on the on-line
platform "AGORA" for the insurance of recoveries that allows
customers to buy recovery services and receive payments. This
platform increases the efficacy and efficiency of collecting unpaid
invoices.

‘ ‘ Crédito y Caucion is helping us a lot internationally,
especially with its Cycomex tool" ’ ’

Juan Luis Lasachairman of Ternua Group. Crédito y Caucidn Customer

 Contact and calendar 2020
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Customer experience project

In 2016, the Customer Experience Project was launched, this is
a transversal initiative within the traditional business whose
main objective is to create a customer-focused culture by un-
derstanding their needs, measuring their opinion in all phases
of the so-called customer journey and guaranteeing an optimal,
consistent and homogeneous experience regardless of the con-
tact channel.

The customer journey was represented graphically as a means
of identifying the initiatives to be developed, a route that includes
the different phases in which the customer interacts with the
companies of the Grupo Catalana Occidente, with special atten-
tion to the interactions of claims. The aim is to get to know the
customer better at each of these stages, so that their different
needs can be met.

In recent years, new self-service functionalities have been de-
veloped and implemented in the e-customer tool. For example,
the user can know the status of his claim and follow the differ-
ent phases of the claim. In 2019, progress has been made on the
self-service value proposition with the aim of continuing to
provide customers with an autonomous, immediate and digital
management capacity.

On the other hand, it is worth mentioning the customer expe-
rience guides for the professionals who serve them during a
claim, establishing clear protocols on how they should relate
and interact with the customers. In this way we intend to ho-
mogenize processes in order to provide the highest level of
service through our professionals. To analyse the impact of these
initiatives, the customer's voice is collected through various
surveys carried out at different key points in the customer's
itinerary.
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Shareholders and investors Intermediaries
Specific commitments Specific commitments

r; ™ ® Offer an attractive environment for investment
7-|= ® Carry out prudent risk management
® Develop a long-term strategy

Communication channels.

N 7 ® Corporate website: shareholders and investors.
® Roadshows.
® General Shareholders Meeting

The relationships with shareholders and investors develop in
conformance with the principles of good governance, respon-
sibility, priority of social interest, equal treatment, transparen-
cy, veracity and fluid and permanent dialogue.

The Group avails of various communication channels to guar-
antee the quality and frequency of its relationship with the
institutional investors and shareholders, two specific areas of
the organisation attend to requests from institutional investors
and shareholders, their proposals and expectations on man-
agement in an individualised and approachable manner.

The Group’s website publishes information relative to the com-

munication policy and contacts with the shareholders, institu-
tional investors and vote advisors.

-~
o

223 meetings 16 roadshows and forums

I;In} CR Report

™ ¢ Continuous support for professional
— development.

® Equal remuneration

Sl

Communication channels.

N % ¢ Internal website.
® Conferences and training courses.

2018 2019| chg

Number of NT intermediaries 17,801 17,327 ‘ -2.7%

*The decrease in the number of mediators is caused by the
incorporation as employees of the mediators of NorteHispana
Seguros.

The mediators are a key factorin the Group’s relationship with
its surroundings. They contact the customers, generating con-
fidence to understand individual needs and providing value
through their professionalism and proximity.

The Group aims to maintain lasting relationships with its cus-
tomers through adequate advice in the prevention of hazards,
coverage adapted to their needs, excellent service and compet-
itive prices.

The professional distribution network consists, fundamental-
ly, of exclusive agents and insurance brokers.

Professionalism through training

In the year 2019, the training in the distribution network for
traditional business has been oriented towards the development
of the sales force, the growth of the business. They highlight
projects such as management training and entrepreneurial
boost. Furthermore, special attention has been paid to cross
sales, the contention of cancellations, customerloyalty and the
use of new tools and systems.

Mediator satisfaction

Grupo Catalana Occidente measures the satisfaction indicators
annually for the mediation network in the traditional business
entities, though the Opinion study of the exclusive agent and
broker carried out by ICEA in 2019. The results of the study
conclude that the concepts valued are the competitive products
and services, support of commercial work, training and infor-
mation, contact personnel and agility in the processing of claims.

‘ ‘ The NH Avanza project allows me to
rate projects and consult policies quickly and
at any time and place through the tablet. It is
a great advantage to be able to offer
customised solutions when we visit our

customers ’ ’

Carmen Pérez Ruiz

NorteHispana Seguros Intermediary
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Associates and suppliers

Specific commitments
® Objectivity.

® Transparency.

® Equal treatment.

2=

\

Communication channels.

\g, ® Selection policy.
[ ]

Evaluation policy.
® Annual meetings.

2018 2019
Other experts 364,314 374,343
Motor experts 195,669 193,837
Orders to repairers 419,022 421,737
Body experts 33,132 34,562
customers satisfied with the STR service 77% 86%
Customers satisfied with AutoPresto 90% 94%
Total orders 1,044,467 1,051,555

The companies of the Group work with two types of suppliers:

* Generalists, who supply products and services of a general
naturethatarenot directlyrelated to the business: cleaning,
maintenance and computer support.

e Specialised suppliers, whose service is essential for the
performance of the insurance activity: motor experts, oth-
er experts, lawyers, medical experts, garages and repair-
ers. The garages form part of the network called Autopresto
and the repairers are part of the Technical Repair Service.
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The code of ethics establishes that the Group’s relationship with
collaborators and suppliers must be oriented towards the
achievement of common goals, based on mutual commitment
to the fight against corruption and respect for human rights.
To ensure all of this, all of the contracts include a clause on
compliance with the code of ethics.

Average payment period for suppliers

The Group does not have any balance pending to suppliers with
deferment over the legal period (30 days except where otherwise
agreed between the parties). For more information, see Note
21c. of the Notes to the report.

Supplier management in traditional business

Perpersa (Insurance experts and EIG prevention) is the com-
pany in Grupo Catalana Occidente that manages specialised
suppliers for the solution of claims, except for lawyers. All of
the direct suppliers are local.

In total, the Group avails of over 2,208 collaborators, which has
increased during the year by 10.4%.

The activity holds the quality certificate UNE-EN ISO 9001-2008,
which guarantees that the processes are oriented towards con-
tinuous improvement and have efficient organisation for the
planning, control and analysis of results.

‘ ‘ Being part of the AutoPresto workshop network not
only allows me to increase my business, but also to have an
insurance group that provides me with management tools
and advice on customer relations ’ ’

Francisco Javier Bocos Baron Responsible for the San Ignacio workshop

 Contact and calendar 2020
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Environment

Grupo Catalana Occidente will adapt to the effects of climate
change by updating the actuarial models with new impact data
and through plans of action to mitigate said risks. This has a
particular impact on agricultural insurance (agroinsurance)
although thishas marginal weight within the Group. Furthermore,
in the health and life insurances, the impacts that may be derived
from heatwaves are also monitored.

The Group carries out its activities in compliance with current
environmental legislation, as well as with voluntarily acquired
commitments in such away as to encourage good environmen-
tal, energy and eco-efficient practices, the promotion of the
consumption of renewable energies and the offsetting of green-
house gas emissions.

The Group has not received any claims for environmental impact

In 2019, new projects and renovations included movement de-
tectors, automatic regulation of light intensity and replacement
of air conditioning and heating installations for other more
efficient systems from an energy point of view. These actions
have reduced energy consumption in the principal buildings
of the Group in traditional business by over 50%.

Finally, the environmental impact of the business supply chain
for the entities of the Group is limited.

In 2018, the Group determined its material topics (see page 36)

within the corporate responsibility strategy. The environment
does not form part of those 10 material topics.
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Non-financial information statement Related GRI standards Materiality Report location
Management focus Description of thepolicies that the group applies regarding said issues, which will include the due diligence policies applied for 103-2 The management focus and its Pages 35, 412,
identification, evaluation, prevention and mitigation of significant risks and impacts and of verification and control, including components 42,43, 44,45
which measures have been adopted. and 46. Table 12
The results of these policies, which must include relevant key indicators on non-financial results that permit monitoring and 103-2 The management focus and its Pages 35, 43
evaluation of the progress and that favour comparability between companies and sectors, in accordance with the national, components and 46
European and international frameworks of reference used. 103-3 Evaluation of the management focus
The main risks related to these issued linked to the activities of the group, including, where relevant and proportionate, their 102-15 Principal impacts, risks and opportuni- Risk Pages 35, 45
commercial relationships, products or services that may have negative effects in those scopes, and how the group manages said ties management and 46
risks, explaining theprocedures used to detect and evaluate them in accordance with national, European or international and regulatory
frameworks of reference for each topic. Information must be included on the impacts detected, offering a breakdown of them, compliance.
particularly for the principal risks in the short, medium and long-term.
General information - Business model
Business model Brief description of the group’s business model (entrepreneurial and organisation environment) 102-2 Activities, brands, products and Pages 7, 34, 35,
services 36,37 and 38
102-7 Size of the organisation Pages 7, 8 and
38
102-9 Supply chain Pages 37,51, 52
and 53
Geographical presence 102-3 Headquarters location Page 38
102-4 Operations location Pages 7 and 38
102-6 Markets served Pages 7 and 37
Objectives and strategies of the organisation 102-14 Declaration of top executives Pages 4,5,7,17,
responsible for decision-making (vision and 34 and 35
strategy relative to the management of
economic, social and environmental impacts)
Principal factors and trends that may affect future evolution 102-15 Principal impacts, risks and opportuni- Risk Pages 10,11, 12,
ties management 17,35 and 46
and regulatory
compliance.
General Mention in the report on the national, European or international reporting framework used for the selection of key indicators for 102-54 Declaration of preparation of the Page 2

non-financial results included in each of the sections.

report on conformity with the GRI standards
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Non-financial information statement Related GRI standards Materiality Report location
Information on social issues and personnel issues
Employment Total number and distribution of employees by gender, age, country and professional classification 102-8 Information on employees and other workers Quality Page 7
405-1 Diversity in government bodies and employees employment Tables 2,3 and 4
Total number and distribution of modalities of work contract, annual average of permanent contracts, 102-8 Information on employees and other workers Quality Tables 1and 5.
temporary contracts and part-time contracts by sex, age and professional classification. employment
Number of terminations by gender, age and professional classification 401-1 New employee hires and personnel rotation Quality Table 6 and 6b.
employment
The average remunerations and their evolution disaggregated by gender, age and professional classification 405-2 Ratio of the base salary and remuneration of women Table 7and 7b
or equal value Wage gap, remuneration for equal or average jobs in society. compared to men
Average remuneration of board members and directors, including variable remuneration, allowance, 201-3 Obligations of the defined benefits plan and other retirement Annual
compensation and payment to long-term saving systems and any other money perceived disaggregated by plans remuneration
gender report of the
board of
directors
Tables 7 and
Page 42
Implementation of work disconnection policies 103 - Management focus Page 50
Employees with disability 405-1 Diversity in government bodies and employees Pages 49 and 50
Organisation of work Organisation of work time; 103 - Management focus Quality Pages 49 and 50
employment
Number of hours of absenteeism 403-2 Types of accidents and frequency rate of accidents, Quality Table 10
professional illness, days lost, absenteeism and number of deaths employment
by occupational accident or occupational illness
Measures aimed to facilitate the enjoyment of conciliation and to promote shared exercise of the same by 401-3 Parental leave Quality Pages 49 and 50
both parents. employment
Health and safety Occupational health and safety conditions na Non-material
Occupational accidents, particularly their frequency and severity, as well as professional iliness; disaggregated na
by sex.
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Non-financial information statement Related GRI standards Materiality location
Information on social issues and personnel issues
Social relationships Organisation of social dialogue, including procedures to inform and consult personnel and to negotiate with them; 102-43 Focus for the participation of groups of Quality Page 35 and
interest employment 50
103 Management focus Quality Page 50
employment
Percentage of employees covered by collective bargaining agreements by country 103 Management focus Quality Page 50
Balance of collective agreements, particularly in the field of health and safety at work employment
Training Policies implemented in the field of training 103 Management focus Professional Page 49
102-41 Collective negotiation agreements development Table 11
The total amount of training hours by professional categories 404-1 Average training hours per year per
employee
Universal accessibility for people Universal accessibility and integration for people with disability 405-1 Diversity in government bodies and Quality Pages 49 and
with disability employees employment 50
Equality Measures adopted to promote equal treatment and opportunities between men and women 401-3 Parental leave Quality Pages 43, 49
employment and 50
Plans for equality (Chapter IIl of Organic Law 3/2007, of March 22, on effective equality between men and women), measures 103 Management focus Table 9
adopted to promote employment, protocols against sexual and gender-based harassment, universal accessibility and integration
of people with disability.
Policy against all types of discrimination and, where applicable, management of diversity 406-1 Cases of discrimination and corrective
actions taken
Information on respect for human rights
Application of due diligence Application of due diligence procedures related to human rights, prevention of risks for violation of human rights and, where 102-16 Values, principles, standards and regula- Ethics, Pages 35, 43
procedures applicable, measures to mitigate, manage and repair possible abuse committed. tions for behaviour integrity and and 53
transparency
Quality
102-17 Mechanisms for advice and ethical employment Page 43
concerns Commitment
to society
Complaints of cases of violation of human rights 419-1 Non-compliance with laws and Page 43
regulations in the social and economic spheres Table 9
Promotion and compliance with the provisions of the fundamental agreements of the International Labour Organisation related 406-1 Cases of discrimination and corrective Page 50
to respect for the freedom of association and the right to collective negotiation; the elimination of discrimination at work and actions taken Table 9

occupation; the elimination of forced or obligatory work; the effective abolition of child labour.
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Non-financial information statement Related GRI standards Materiality location
Information relative to the fight against corruption and bribery
Information relative to the fight Measures adopted to prevent corruption and bribery 102-16 Values, principles, standards and regula- Ethics, Pages 40, 42,
against corruption and bribery tions for behaviour integrity and 43, 44 and 52
transparency
102-17 Mechanisms for advice and ethical Pages 43 and
concerns 44
205-1 Operations evaluated for risks related to Page 44
corruption
Measures to fight against money laundering 205-2 Communication and training on Page 44
anti-corruption policies and procedures
205-3 Confirmed cases of corruption and Page 44
measures taken
Contributions to non-profit entities and foundations 201-1 Direct economic value generated and Page 48
distributed
Information about the society
The company’s commitments to The impact of society's activity on local populations and the territory 204-1 Proportion of expense in local suppliers Commitment Pages 35, 48
sustainable development The impact of the society’s activity on employment and local development to society and 52
Table 8
413-1 Operations with the participation of the
local community, impact evaluations and
development programs
Relationships maintained with the actors in local communities and the modalities of dialogue with the same 102-43 Focus for the participation of groups of
interest
- N e L Page 48
Association or sponsorship actions 102-13 Affiliation with associations
Subcontracting and suppliers Inclusion in the purchase policy of social, gender equality and environmental issues na Non-material

Consideration in relationships with suppliers and subcontractors of their social and environmental responsibility

Supervision and audit systems and results of the same.
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Related GRI standards

Materiality

Report location

Consumers Measures for health and safety of consumers 103 Management focus Ethics, integrity Pages 44 and 51
and transparency
Systems for claims, complaints received and resolution of the same 102-43 Focus for the participation of groups of interest Pages 35 and 51
418-1 Substantiated claims relative to violations of customer Page 44
privacy and loss of customer data
Other indicators: No. of complaints, No. of claims received and Page 50
admitted, resolution of the claims (in favour of the customer,
in favour of the entity or resolved by agreement)
Tax information Benefits obtained country by country 201-1 Direct economic value generated and distributed Economic Page 12
performance, Table 13
Income taxes paid 201-1 Direct economic value generated and distributed profitability and Page 12
company solvency
Table 13
Information on public subsidies received 201-4 Financial assistance received from government Page 48
Information on environmental issues
Current and anticipated effects of the company’s activities on the environment and, where applicable, the health 102-11 Principle or focus of precaution Risk management Page 35 and 53
and safety, the evaluation procedures or environmental certification. 307-1 Non-compliance with legislation and environmental and regulatory
regulation compliance.
Environmental management Resources dedicated to prevention of environmental risks. n.a Page 35and 53
Quantity of provisions and guarantees for environmental risks 102-15 Principal impacts, risks and opportunities Risk management Page 35and 53

and regulatory

compliance.
Contamination Measures to prevent, reduce or repair the emissions that seriously affect the environment; taking into account any na Non-material
form of atmospheric contamination specific to an activity, including noise and light pollution.
Circular economy and waste Circular economy, measures for prevention, recycling, reuse, other forms of recovery and elimination of waste, na
management and prevention actions to fight against food waste na
Sustainable use of resources Water consumption and water supply in accordance with local constraints Consumption of prime materials and na
measures adopted to improve efficiency of use
Direct and indirect energy consumption, measures taken to improve energy efficiency and the use of renewable n.a
energy
Climate change 1-The measures taken to adapt to the consequences of climate change; na
2-The voluntary medium- and long-term reduction targets established to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and the
means implemented to that end.
Protection of Biodiversity: 1-Measures taken to preserve or restore biodiversity na

2-lmpacts caused by activities or operations in protected areas.
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Annex tables - non-financial information The information relative to employees in non-financial infor-  This information differs from other sections of the management
mation refers to work contracts valid on 31/12/2019. report, as well as the report of the annual statements, which
measures the average of full-time employees (full-time equiv-
alent).
2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019
Table 1* - Employees by type of contract and gender Table 3 - Employees per country Table 4 - Employees by professional rating and gender
Permanent contract 7,329 7366 Spain 4,455 4,504 Executives 118 137
Total women 3,493 3,516 Netherlands 577 570 % Women 15.3% 15.3%
Total men 3,836 3,850 Germany 486 484 Intermediate managers and technical supervision 1,523 1,562
Temporary contract 292 302 United Kingdom 415 399 % Women 31.1% 31.0%
Total women 173 175 Belgium 336 308 Qualified admin. and sales 4,364 5,098
Total men 119 127 France 242 232 % Women 50.0% 50.1%
Total employees 7,621 7,668 Italy 208 205 Administrative support 823 871
Scope 100% 100% us. 121 125 % Women 74.7% 72.3%
* Explanatory note to tables 1 and 5: only breakdowns of contract type and Denmark 74 7 Total employees 6828 | 17668
working day type by gender are reported, as this is the Group's representative Mexico 79 74 Scope 94% 100%

material information.

Australia 65 66
2018 2019 Portugal 59 59
Table 2 - Employees by age and gender Poland 52 52 2018 2019 | Proportion
Table 5 - Employees by type of working hours and
Over 50 2,793 2,911 Hong Kong 50 46 gender
% Women 39.8% | 40.6% China 42 42 Full time 6,599 6,663 86.9%
From 40 to 49 2538 | 2514 Singapore 46 42 % Women 42.5% 42.7%
% Women 52.4% 52.5% Ireland 43 40 Part time 1,022 1,005 13.1%
From 30 to 39 L714| 1645 | Rest of the World 2711|343 o Women 84.2% 84.5%
% Women 53.5% 52.6% Total employees 7,621 7,668 Total employees 7621 7,668
Under 30 576 598 Scope 100% 100% Scope 100% 100%
% Women 53.6% 54.2%
Total employees 7,621 7,668
Scope 100% 100%
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| 2018|2019 | 2018|2019
Table 6a** - Terminations by age and gender Table 7a - Total remuneration board members*
Over 50 14 25 Total 6,516 6,705
% Women 50.0% | 44.0% Average 407 419
From 40 to 49
30 2 Includes fixed remuneration, variable remuneration, allowance, bylaws and others.
% Women 53.3% 40.9% The remuneration of all individual directors in their capacity as such (except the
From 30 to 39 28 38 Chairman qnd the Chief Execyt/ve Officer) is the same. Of the members of t'he
Board of Directors, only one is a woman. The breakdown of the remuneration by
% Women 53.6% 42.1% item and person can be found in the annual report on the remuneration of the
Under 30 3 19 Board of Directors available on the Group's website.
% Women 66.7% 52.6%
Total employees 75| 104 | 2018|2019
Scope 53%*|  100% Table 7b*** - Remuneration by category and gender and wage gap
Executives
Average salary man 174,393 | 169,847
‘ 2018 ‘ 2019 Average salary woman 149,029 | 148,716
Table 6b™* - Terminations by category and gender Ratio of average remuneration Women/Men 0.85 0.88
Executives 1 6 Intermediate managers and technical supervision
% Women 0.0% | 333% Average salary man 78,413 | 80,695
Intermediate managers and technical supervision 13 14 Average salary woman 62445 | 66554
% Women 615% | 357% Ratio of average remuneration Women/Men 0.80 0.82
Qualified admin. and sales 59 53 Qualified admin. and sales
% Women 52.5% 34.0% Average salary man 49339 | 46,473
Administrative support 2 31 Average salary woman 42,631 | 39,075
% Women 50% | 67.7% Ratio of average remuneration Women/Men 0.86 0.84
Total employees 75 104 Administrative support
Scope 53%*|  100% Average salary man 28,096 | 25012
*Explanatory notes table 6 and 6b: Average salary woman 30,941| 26,016
- Traditional business: in both 2018 and 2019 most of the dismissals in the Ratio of average remuneration Wormen/Men 110 104
traditional business correspond to commercial staff on the payroll of agency - -
companies. Scope 91% 100%

- Likewise, the 2018 data is from traditional business + Atradius Spain (53% of

employees)

| 2018|2019

Table 7c*** - Remuneration by category and gender and wage gap (employees in
Spain)

Executives
Average salary man 157,106 | 154,916
Average salary woman 136,768 | 144,105
Ratio of average remuneration Women/Men 0.87 0.93
Intermediate managers and technical supervision
Average salary man 60,268 | 63,637
Average salary woman 51,573 | 55,825
Ratio of average remuneration Women/Men 0.86 0.88
Qualified admin. and sales
Average salary man 37360 | 35,702
Average salary woman 34,268 | 32,530
Ratio of average remuneration Women/Men 0.92 091
Administrative support
Average salary man 20,526 17,465
Average salary woman 18,826 | 16,406
Ratio of average remuneration Women/Men 0.92 0.94
Scope 91% 100%

***Clarification note table 7b and 7c. The main reason for the difference in the
average pay ratio by gender is seniority.

The average remuneration of employees in the traditional business is €48,106 for
the over-50s, €37471 for the 40-49s, €29,731 for the 30-39s and €20,460 for the
under-30s.
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‘ 2018 ‘ 2019 ‘ Women ‘ Men ‘ Internal ‘ Location
Table 8 - Operations with participation of local community Table 10 - Absenteeism Table 12 - Group Policies
Total number of company operations 63 63 Occupational illness 1 0 Code of ethics and behaviour Website
Total number of operations with programs for participation Hours of absenteeism 190,175 | 150,927 Corporate Tax Policy Website
with the local community, impact evaluations and/or 44 53 ] o Board Member Selection Policy X
development programs Number of employees who carry out professional activities 0 0 C e Tax Poli X
h hioh i e orporate Tax Polic
Percentage of operations with the participation of the local with high risk of certain illnesses P - v — - -
community, impact evaluations and/or development 70% 84% Corporate Social Responsibility Policy Website
programs Health and Well-being and Prevention of Occupational X
» ’ ) ) o Hazards Policy
Sour‘ce_?. Fl{ndaaon Jesus Serra relative to aid programs for training and Plan for Business Continuity X
participation programs, both cultural and sporting
Risk Management System Policy X
| 2018|2019 :
Investment Policy X
Table 11 - Training by category and gender (hours) Reinsurance Policy X
Executives 9,251| 5,716 Risk of subscription, risk of provision constitution and X
% Women 3320% | 625% claim management policy
Intermediate managers and technical supervision 32,611 | 38,446 Policy relgtlve to thg p_artlal internal model for the risk of X
subscription of credit insurance
‘ 2018 ‘ 2019 % Women 39.10% | 50.8% Communication policy with Institutional Shareholders X
. . Qualified admin. and sales 69,089 | 86,894 and
Table 9 - Equality and human rights % Wormen 3360% | 55.8% Reputation Risk Policy Website
Cases of discrimination 4 0 i
— Administrative support 25,841 | 18,898 ORSA Policy X
Positively resolved 100% 0% Capital management policy X
- - % Women 57.20% 37.2% - -
Complaints related to human rights 0 1 Policy of aptitude and honour X
Total hours 136,792 | 149,954 :
Internal control policy X
Scope 100% |  100% Risk Management System Policy Website
Internal audit policy X
Verification of compliance policy. X
2018 2019 - -
Remuneration policy X
Number of courses (traditional business) 1,217 1,609 Work disconnection policy X
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Table 13* - Tax information Profit and taxes by geographical areas
2018 2019
Profit Tax accrued Tax paid Profit Tax accrued Tax paid

Spain 3404 85.4 85.0 3633 931 80.8
Belgium 28.8 8.8 91 23.8 84 6.8
Denmark 43 14 HC3.4 73 12 16
France 25.8 5.8 59 16.6 71 49
Germany 287 6.7 4.8 39.8 6.2 146
Greece 3.8 2.0 2.0 HC.3.2 19 0.9
Ireland 435 49 3.0 492 2.8 35
Italy 77 0.0 14 117 13 37
Norway 30 11 10.8 37 107 0.9
Russia HC5.2 0.5 0.5 8.2 13 16
Switzerland 35 04 0.6 37 11 04
United Kingdom 117 3.8 16 24.0 27 HC5.1
Netherlands 26.0 10 0.0 134 8.2 37
Other Europe 10.6 13 21 8,5 17 17
Australia 6.8 3.0 21 37 6,5 11
USA 116 35 2.8 6,0 31 2.8
Rest OECD 6.1 17 16 -29 17 0.2
Hong Kong 6.1 09 1.0 5.0 01 04
Rest of the World 43 03 11 5.4 0.8 13
Total 578.0 1325 139.0 597.2 158.0 136.0
Foreign business consolidation adjustments -55.3 0 -2.6 -41.0 0.0 -4.3
Total GCO 5227 1325 136.4 556.2 158.0 1317

The taxes paid correspond to the amounts effectively paid or received in the concept of corporate tax in the year and include payments on account and withholdings in the
present year as well as the definitive liquidation of the previous year.
For its part, the tax accrued corresponds to the expenses for taxes accounted for upon close of the year for profits obtained in said year.

Finally, Profit corresponds to pre-tax profits.

 Contact and calendar 2020
* Feedback

(figures in millions of euro)
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Formulation

Technical result

Result of the insurance activity

Technical result = (premiums accrued from direct insurance + premiums accrued from reinsurance
accepted + information services and commissions) - Technical cost - Participation in benefits and return
premiums - Net operating expenses - Other technical expenses

Reinsurance result

Result due to transferring business to the reinsurer or accepting business from other entities.

Reinsurance result = Result of Inward Re + Result of ceded reinsurance

Financial result

Result of the financial investments.

Financial result = income from financial assets (coupons, dividends, actions) - financial expenses
(commissions and other expenses) + result of subsidiary companies - interest accrued on the debt - inter-
est paid to the insured parties of the life insurance business

Technical-financial result

Result of the insurance activity, including the financial result.
This result is particularly relevant for Life insurance.

Technical/financial result = Technical result + Financial result.

Result of non-technical non-financial
account

Income and expenses that cannot be assigned to the technical or financial results.

Result of non-technical non-financial account = Income - expenses that cannot be assigned to the
technical or financial results.

Result of credit insurance
complementary activities

Result of activities that cannot be assigned to the purely insurance business.
Mainly distinguishes the activities of:
+ Information services

+ Collections
- Management of the export account of the Dutch state

Result of credit insurance complementary activities = income - expenses

Recurring result

Result of the entity's regular activity

Recurring result = technical/financial result + non-technical account result - taxes, all resulting from
normal activity

Non-recurring result

Extraordinary or atypical movements that may undermine the analysis of the income statement.
These are classified depending on their nature (technical, expenses and financial) and by business type
(traditional and credit insurance)

Non-recurring result = technical/financial result + non-technical account result - taxes, all resulting from
extraordinary or atypical activity

Turnover Turnover is the Group's business volume Turnover = Premiums invoiced + Income from information.
It includes premiums that the Group generates in each of the business lines and the income from services Premiums invoiced = premiums issued for direct insurance + premiums from accepted reinsurance.
pertaining to the credit insurance.

Managed funds Amount of the financial and property assets managed by the Group Managed funds = Financial and property assets entity risk + Financial and property assets policyholder

risk + Managed pension funds
Managed funds = fixed income + variable income + property + deposits in credit institutions + treasury +
subsidiary companies

Financial strength

This shows the debt and solvency situation.
This is principally measured through the debt ratio, the interest coverage ratio and the credit rating.

Debt ratio = Net equity + debt / debt.

Interest coverage ratio = result before taxes / interest.

Technical cost

Direct costs of accident coverage.
See claims.

Technical cost = claims in the year, net of reinsurance + variation of other technical provisions, net of
reinsurance

Dividend yield

The profitability per dividend or dividend yield shows the relationship existing between the dividends
distributed in the previous year with the value of the average share.
Indicator used to value the shares of an entity.

Dividend yield = dividend paid in the year per share / value of the price of the average share.
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Concept Definition Formulation
Modified duration Sensitivity of the value of the assets to movements in interest rates Modified duration= Represents an approximation of the value of the percentage variation in the value of
the financial assets for each percentage point (100 basic points) of variation in the interest rates.
Expenses The general expenses include the costs incurred for management of the business, excluding those that can Expenses = personnel expenses + commercial expenses + various expenses and services (allowance,
be assigned to claims. training, management rewards, material and other office expenses, leases, external services, etc.)
Permanence index Measures the customers expectation of staying with the entity Permanence index= how long do you think that you will remain a customer?

Scale of less than 1 year to over 5 years

Company satisfaction index

This measures the degree of general satisfaction with the entity
Scale from 1to 10

General satisfaction level = (Satisfied - unsatisfied) / survey participants
Satisfied responses from 7 to 10
Unsatisfied responses from 1to 4

Service satisfaction index

This measures the evaluation of the service received
Scale from 1to 10

Service satisfaction level = (Satisfied - unsatisfied) / survey participants
Satisfied: responses from 7 to 10
Unsatisfied: responses from 1to 4

Income from insurance

Measures the income directly derived from the activities of insurance and information services

Income from insurance = premiums accrued from direct insurance + premiums accrued fro accepted
reinsurance + information services and commissions

Investments in associated /
subsidiary entities

Non-dependant entities where the Group has significant influence

Investments in associated / subsidiary entities = accounting value of the economic investment

Net Promoter Score

This measures the degree of customer loyalty with the entity

Net Promoter score = Would you recommend the company to family and friends? = (advocates - oppo-

NPS nents)/ survey participants
Advocates: responses with result equal to 9 to 10
Opponents: responses from 1 to 6
Pay out Ratio that indicates the part of the result distributed among investors through dividends Pay out = (Total dividend/ Result of the year attributable to the parent company) x 100
Price Earnings Ratio The price-earnings ratio or PER measures the relationship between the price or value of the entity and the PER = Price of the share at market close / Result of the year attributable to the parent company per share
PER results.

Its value expresses what the market pays for each monetary unit of results.
It is representative of the entity's capacity to generate results.

Ex. single premiums

Total premiums without considering non-periodic premiums in the Life business

Ex. single premiums = Invoiced premiums - single premiums in the life business

Technical Provisions

Amount of the obligations assumed that are derived from insurance and reinsurance contracts.

Combined ratio

Indicator that measures the technical profitability of the Non Life insurances.

Combined ratio = Ratio of claims + ratio of expenses

Net combined ratio Indicator that measures the technical profitability of the non life insurances net of the reinsurance effect Net combined ratio = Net ratio of claims + net ratio of expenses

Expenses ratio Ratio that reflects the part of the income from premiums dedicated to expenses. Expenses ratio = Expenses from operation / Income from insurance

Net expenses ratio Ratio that reflects the part of the income from premiums dedicated to expenses, net of the reinsurance Net expenses ratio= (Net expenses from reinsurance operation) / (premiums attributed to direct business
effect and accepted reinsurance + information services and commissions)

Claims ratio Business indicator, consisting of the proportion between claims and earned premiums. Claims ratio = Claims / Income from insurance

Net claims ratio Business indicator, consisting of the proportion between claims and earned premiums, net of the Net claims ratio= Claims in the year, net of reinsurance / (premiums attributed to direct business and

reinsurance effect.

accepted reinsurance + information services and commissions)
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Concept Definition Formulation

Long-term capital

Resources that can be included in own funds.

Long-term capital = Total net equity + subordinated liabilities

Long term capital at market value

Resources that can be included in own funds at market value

Long term capital at market value = Total net equity + subordinated liabilities + capital gains associated to
properties for own use + capital gains associated to property investments

Resources transferred to the
company

Amount that the Group returns to the main groups of interest.

Resources transferred to society = claims paid + taxes + commissions + personnel expenses + dividends

ROE = (Result of the year. Attributable to the parent company) / (Simple average of the Equity attributed

Return On Equity Financial profitability or rate of return
ROE Measures the performance of the capital. to shareholders of the parent company at the start and end of the period (twelve months)) x 100
Claims See technical cost. Economic evaluation of claims. Claims = Payments made from direct insurance + Variation of the provision for services of direct insurance

+ expenses attributable to services

Total Potential Exposure TPE

This is the potential exposure to risk, also “cumulative risk”. Credit insurance business term.

TPE = the sum of the credit risks underwritten by the Group for each buyer
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Contact 2019 Calendar

27 30 30 29

For further information please contact:

analistas@catalanaoccidente.com Results Results Presentation Presentation
+3 4 935 820 518 12M2019 3M2020 2;5;3250 sFjlilszu‘l)tzso
Analysts and investors
+34 935 820 518 27 4 30 29
anahstas@catalanaocc1dente.c0m Presentation Presentation Presentation Presentation
Results of results Results Results
. 12M2019 3M2020 6M2020 9M2020
Shareholder services 1630 16.30 16.30 16.30
+34 935 820 667
accionistas@catalanaoccidente.com 30
General
Shareholders
Meeting
Year 2019
Dividend Complement Dividend Dividend
dividend ary dividend dividend
2019 dividend 2020 2020
2019

@gCco_news

Y

Catalana TRRZJ for iPad available in the App Store: Grupo
(LN Catalana Occidente Financial Reports

Grupo asegurador
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GRUPO CATALANA OCCIDENTE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Grupo Catalana Occidente)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
AND 31 DECEMBER 2018 (Notes 1 to 3)

(Figures in Thousands of Euros)

ASSET Note 31.12.2018 (*) 31.12.2019
Cash and other cash equivalents 1.163.531 1.354.740
Financial assets held for trading 7.a 29 -
3. 7.a. 340.814 579.019
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
a) Equity instruments 96 26.259
b) Debt securities - 1.026
?r?Jg:t(;:iter:fﬂ;iheld for the benefit of policyholders who bear the 340.718 551734
4. Available-for-Sale financial assets 7.a. 8.105.731 9.586.342
a) Equity instruments 1.287.736 1.769.154
b) Debt securities 6.615.682 7.337.199
c) Loans - -
d) Bank deposits 202.313 479.989
5. Loans and items receivable 1.421.324 1.197.027
a) Loans and other financial assets 7.a. 595.595 327.770
b) Receivables 7.b. 804.341 845.875
c) Investments held for the benefit of policyholders who bear the 7 a. 21.388 23382
investment risk
Reinsurer’s share of technical provisions 14 837.376 874.347
Property, plant and equipment and investment property 867.090 1.095.491
a) Property, plant and equipment 9.a. 306.009 434.101
b) Investment property 9.b. 561.081 661.390
10. Intangible assets 936.112 995.015
a) Goodwill 10.a. 792.951 804.975
b) Policy portfolio acquisition costs 10 344 349
c¢) Other intangible assets 10 142.817 189.691
11. 8 85.491 85.794
Investments in entities accounted for using the equity method
12. Tax assets 177.473 331.429
a) Current tax assets 11.b. 80.957 105.165
b) Deferred tax assets 1ll.c. 96.516 226.264
13. Other assets 12 544.406 578.745
14. Assets held for sale - -
TOTAL ASSETS 14.479.377 16.677.949

(*) Presented solely and exclusively for comparison purposes.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 22 and Appendices | and Il are an integral part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet at 31 December 2019.



GRUPO CATALANA OCCIDENTE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Grupo Catalana Occidente)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
AND 31 DECEMBER 2018 (Notes 1 to 3)

(Figures in Thousands of Euros)

NET LIABILITIES AND EQUITY Note 31.12.2018 (*) 31.12.2019
TOTAL LIABILITIES 11.275.241 12.826.766
3. Debits and payables 870.637 954.707
a) Subordinated liabilities 13.a. 200.439 200.545
b) Other payables 13.b. 670.198 754.162
5. Technical Provisions 14 9.567.700 10.652.097
a) For unearned premiums 1.296.520 1.354.729
b) For unexpired risks 6.022 4.098
¢) For life insurance
- Provision for unearned premiums and unexpired risks 26.031 27.537
- Mathematical provision 5.181.207 5.839.867
;)Elir(c:))\l/ri]soil(()jr;:;)r life insurance where the investment risk is borne by 362.106 575.144
d) For claims 2.633.399 2.729.261
e) For policyholder dividends and return premiums 5.179 31.783
f) Other technical provisions 57.236 89.678
Non Technical Provisions 15 184.050 210.513
Tax liabilities 350.607 554,947
a) Current tax liabilities 11.b. 69.683 66.510
b) Deferred tax liabilities 11l.c. 280.924 488.437
8. Other Liabilities 302.247 454.502
TOTAL NET EQUITY 3.204.136 3.851.183
Equity 2.424.730 2.684.352
1. Capital 16.a. 36.000 36.000
2. Share Premium Account 16.b. 1.533 1.533
3. Reserves 16.b. 2.093.584 2.320.994
4. Less: Shares and holdings in own equity 16.c. 22.259 22.000
7. Profit or loss for the year attributable to the parent company 352.160 385.937
a) Consolidated profit or loss 386.422 424.530
b) Profit or loss attributable to minority interests 17 34.262 38.593
8. Less: Interim Dividend 16.e. 36.288 38.112
Other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity 16.g. 439.063 792.792
1. ltems that will not be re-classified to results - -
2. ltems that may later qualify for results- 439.063 792.792
a) Available-for-sale financial assets 535.142 994.333
¢) Exchange differences (26.120) (16.999)
d) Correction of accounting mismatches (67.734) (183.559)
e) Entities accounted for using the equity method (2.225) (983)
f) Other adjustments - -
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE PARENT COMPANY 2.863.793 3.477.144
MINORITY INTERESTS 17 340.343 374.039
1. Other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (10.553) 2.592
2. Other 350.896 371.447
TOTAL NET EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 14.479.377 16.677.949

(*) Presented solely and exclusively for comparison purposes.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 22 and Appendices | and Il are an integral part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet at 31 December 2019.



GRUPO CATALANA OCCIDENTE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Grupo Catalana Occidente)
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR

THE FINANCIAL YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 AND 2018 (notes 1 to 3)

(Figures in Thousands of Euros)

Note Year 2018 (*) Year 2019
1. Earned premiums for the year, net of reinsurance 18 2.677.478 2.868.311
2. Income from property,plant and equipment and investments 18 125.051 110.414
3. Other technical income 18 249.536 252.525
4. Claims incurred in the year, net of reinsurance 18 (1.495.345) (1.583.792)
5. Change in other technical provisions, net of reinsurance 18 (7.334) (13.110)
6. Provision for policyholder dividends and return premiums - (3.873)
7. Net operating expenses 18 (974.333) (976.346)
8. Other technical expenses 18 (12.217) (15.209)
9. Expenses arising from property, plant and equipment and investments 18 (64.827) (96.019)
A) NON-LIFE RESULT 498.009 542.901
10. Earned premiums for the year, net of reinsurance 18 736.502 805.487
11. Income from property,plant and equipment and investments 18 199.004 214.202
12. Income from investments assigned to insurance policies in which policyholders bear the
investment risk 18 17.254 62.245
13. Other technical income 18 8.671 5.663
14. Claims incurred in the year, net of reinsurance 18 (688.901) (727.843)
15. Change in other technical provisions, net of reinsurance 18 (61.767) (162.693)
16. Provision for policyholder dividends and return premiums 18 (1.505) (19.918)
17. Net operating expenses 18 (77.129) (73.912)
18. Other technical expenses 18 (936) (5.022)
19. Expenses arising from property, plant and equipment and investments 18 (34.887) (41.880)
20. Expenses of investments assigned to insurance policies in which policyholders bear the
investment risk 18 (37.142) (13.059)
B) LIFE INSURANCE RESULT 59.164 43.270
C) RESULT ON TECHNICAL ACCOUNT 557.173 586.171
21. Income from property,plant and equipment and investments (3.084) (6.508)
22. Negative goodwill - -
23. Expenses arising from property, plant and equipment and investments (4.010) (5.283)
24. Other income 18 24.629 31.124
25. Other expenses 18 (51.934) (49.305)
E) PROFIT BEFORE TAX 522.774 556.199
26. Income tax 11d (136.352) (131.669)
F) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 386.422 424.530
27. Profit for the year from discontinued operations, net of taxes
G) CONSOLIDATED PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 386.422 424.530
a) Profit attributable to the parent company 352.160 385.937
b) Profit attributable to minority interests 17 34.262 38.593
(Figures in Euros)
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic 16.f 2,99 3,27
Diluted 16.f 2,99 3,27

(*) Presented solely and exclusively for comparison purposes.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 22 and Appendices | and Il are an integral part of the Consolidated Income Statement for 2019.




GRUPO CATALANA OCCIDENTE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Grupo Catalana Occidente)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS BY SEGMENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 (Notes 1 to 3)

TRADITIONAL BUSINESS

(Figures in Thousands of Euros)

ASSET CREDIT BUSINESS TOTAL
NON-LIFE LIFE OTHER ACTIVITIES

1. Cash and other cash equivalents 775.837 1.782.835 (382.167) (821.765) 1.354.740
2. Financial assets held for trading - - - - -
3. Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 27.285 551.734 - - 579.019
4. Available-for-Sale financial assets 1.343.006 5.738.419 51.184 2.453.733 9.586.342
5. Loans and items receivable 313.853 127.871 80.891 674.412 1.197.027

a) Loans and other financial assets 50.865 77.070 47.437 152.398 327.770

b) Receivables 262.988 27.419 33.454 522.014 845.875

c¢) Investments held for the benefit of policyholders who bear the - 23.382 - - 23.382
8. Reinsurer participation in technical provisions 106.285 9.725 - 758.337 874.347
9. Property, plant and equipment and investment property 448.164 263.611 212.433 171.283 1.095.491

a) Property, plant and equipment 176.343 82.327 9.865 165.566 434.101

b) Investment property 271.821 181.284 202.568 5.717 661.390
10. Intangible assets 153.864 179.093 65.890 596.168 995.015

a) Goodwill 103.087 178.953 40.378 482.557 804.975

b) Policy portfolio acquisition costs - - 310 39 349

c¢) Other intangible assets 50.777 140 25.202 113.572 189.691
11. Investments in entities accounted for using the equity method - - 7.666 78.128 85.794
12. Tax assets 82.011 114.809 58.105 76.504 331.429
13. Other assets 147.912 4.010 - 426.823 578.745
TOTAL ASSETS 3.398.217 8.772.107 94.002 4.413.623 16.677.949
(Figures in Thousands of Euros)

NET LIABILITIES AND EQUITY TRADITIONAL BUSINESS CREDIT BUSINESS TOTAL
NON-LIFE LIFE OTHER ACTIVITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2.394.673 7.168.418 72.260 3.191.415 12.826.766
2. Other financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - - - - -
3. Debits and payables 201.194 71.369 22.025 660.119 954.707

a) Subordinated liabilities - - - 200.545 200.545

b) Deposits received on buying reinsurance 5.494 3.883 - 43.529 52.906

c) Liabilities from insurance operations 45.802 7.743 2.199 53.577 109.321

d) Liabilities from reinsurance operations 9.809 661 - 72.727 83.197

e) Liabilities from coinsurance operations 2.551 - - - 2.551

g) Liabilities with credit entities - - - - -

i) Other liabilities 137.538 59.082 19.826 289.741 506.187
5. Technical Provisions 1.902.048 6.618.754 - 2.131.295 10.652.097

a) For unearned premiums 782.913 - - 571.816 1.354.729

b) For unexpired risks 4.098 - - 4.098

¢) For life insurance - 6.442.548 - 6.442.548

d) For claims 1.019.742 150.040 - 1.559.479 2.729.261

e) For policyholder dividends and return premiums 5.617 26.166 - 31.783

f) Other technical provisions 89.678 - - 89.678
6. Non Technical Provisions 47.134 36.875 - 126.504 210.513
7. Tax liabilities 238.545 140.027 50.235 126.140 554.947
8. Other Liabilities 5.752 301.393 - 147.357 454.502
TOTAL NET EQUITY 1.003.544 1.603.689 21.742 1.222.208 3.851.183
Equity 708.119 1.169.059 2.162 805.012 2.684.352
1. Capital 6.868 21.497 - 7.635 36.000
2. Share Premium Account 292 916 - 325 1.533
3. Reserves 552.594 1.145.980 110 622.310 2.320.994
4. Less: Shares and holdings in own equity 4.178 13.177 - 4.645 22.000
7. Profit or loss for the year attributable to the parent company 162.553 30.819 2.070 190.495 385.937

a) Consolidated profit or loss 162.797 30.819 2.093 228.821 424.530

b) Profit or loss attributable to minority interests 244 - 23 38.326 38.593
8. Less: Interim Dividend 10.010 16.976 18 11.108 38.112
Other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity 295.425 434.630 11.651 51.086 792.792
1. Items not reclassified in the profit for the period - - - - -
2. Items that can be reclassified after the profit for the period 295.425 434.630 11.651 51.086 792.792

a) Available-for-sale financial assets 295.425 618.189 11.651 69.068 994.333

c) Exchange differences - - - (16.999) (16.999)

d) Correction of accounting mismatches - (183.559) - - (183.559)

e) Entities accounted for using the equity method - - - (983) (983)

f) Other adjustments - - - - -
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE PARENT COMPANY 1.003.544 1.603.689 13.813 856.098 3.477.144
MINORITY INTERESTS - - 7.929 366.110 374.039
1. Other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity - - 1.775 817 2.592
2. Other - - 6.154 365.293 371.447
TOTAL NET EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3.398.217 8.772.107 94.002 4.413.623 16.677.949




GRUPO CATALANA OCCIDENTE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Grupo Catalana Occidente)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 31, 2018 (*)

TRADITIONAL BUSINESS

(Figures in Thousands of Euros)

ASSET CREDIT BUSINESS TOTAL
NON-LIFE LIFE OTHER ACTIVITIES

1. Cash and other cash equivalents 347.494 1.808.530 (229.833) (762.660) 1.163.531
2. Financial assets held for trading - - 29 - 29
3. Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 340.814 - - 340.814
4. Available-for-Sale financial assets 1.182.486 4.771.011 62.221 2.090.013 8.105.731
5. Loans and items receivable 399.281 85.195 164.712 772.136 1.421.324

a) Loans and other financial assets 210.038 56.765 72.872 255.920 595.595

b) Receivables 189.243 7.042 91.840 516.216 804.341

c¢) Investments held for the benefit of policyholders who bear the - 21.388 - - 21.388
8. Reinsurer participation in technical provisions 97.070 8.812 - 731.494 837.376
9. Property, plant and equipment and investment property 461.401 223.684 76.673 105.332 867.090

a) Property, plant and equipment 144.994 23.033 40.737 97.245 306.009

b) Investment property 316.407 200.651 35.936 8.087 561.081
10. Intangible assets 62.062 174.964 109.919 589.167 936.112

a) Goodwill 61.697 174.964 63.797 492.493 792.951

b) Policy portfolio acquisition costs 295 - - 49 344

c¢) Other intangible assets 70 - 46.122 96.625 142.817
11. Investments in entities accounted for using the equity method 6.193 - 3.852 75.446 85.491
12. Tax assets 15.707 72 75.488 86.206 177.473
13. Other assets 156.631 2.567 373 384.835 544.406
TOTAL ASSETS 2.728.325 7.415.649 263.434 4.071.969 14.479.377
(Figures in Thousands of Euros)

NET LIABILITIES AND EQUITY TRADITIONAL BUSINESS CREDIT BUSINESS TOTAL
NON-LIFE LIFE OTHER ACTIVITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1.953.738 6.019.208 274.533 3.027.762 11.275.241
2. Other financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - - - - -
3. Debits and payables 103.336 150.539 1.676 615.086 870.637

a) Subordinated liabilities - - - 200.439 200.439

b) Deposits received on buying reinsurance 7.412 3.330 - 42.011 52.753

c) Liabilities from insurance operations 60.867 2.328 - 54.079 117.274

d) Liabilities from reinsurance operations 9.879 2.313 - 102.492 114.684

e) Liabilities from coinsurance operations 2.089 - - - 2.089

g) Liabilities with credit entities - - 1.676 336 2.012

i) Other liabilities 23.089 142.568 - 215.729 381.386
5. Technical Provisions 1.825.263 5.713.414 - 2.029.023 9.567.700

a) For unearned premiums 767.951 - - 528.569 1.296.520

b) For unexpired risks 6.022 - - - 6.022

¢) For life insurance - 5.569.344 - - 5.569.344

d) For claims 994.054 138.891 - 1.500.454 2.633.399

e) For policyholder dividends and return premiums - 5.179 - - 5.179

f) Other technical provisions 57.236 - - - 57.236
6. Non Technical Provisions 5.847 - 75.343 102.860 184.050
7. Tax liabilities 17.195 - 197.514 135.898 350.607
8. Other Liabilities 2.097 155.255 - 144.895 302.247
TOTAL NET EQUITY 774.587 1.396.441 (11.099) 1.044.207 3.204.136
Equity 663.440 1.080.018 (25.428) 706.700 2.424.730
1. Capital 10.365 18.000 - 7.635 36.000
2. Share Premium Account 442 766 - 325 1.533
3. Reserves 490.835 1.046.792 - 555.957 2.093.584
4. Less: Shares and holdings in own equity 6.410 11.129 - 4.720 22.259
7. Profit or loss for the year attributable to the parent company 169.407 43.733 (25.428) 164.448 352.160

a) Consolidated profit or loss 169.407 43.733 (25.428) 198.710 386.422

b) Profit or loss attributable to minority interests - - - 34.262 34.262
8. Less: Interim Dividend 1.199 18.144 - 16.945 36.288
Other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity 111.147 316.423 14.329 (2.836) 439.063
1. Items not reclassified in the profit for the period - - - - -
2. Items that can be reclassified after the profit for the period 111.147 316.423 14.329 (2.836) 439.063

a) Available-for-sale financial assets 111.148 384.157 14.329 25.508 535.142

c) Exchange differences (26.120) - - - (26.120)

d) Correction of accounting mismatches 26.119 (67.734) - (26.119) (67.734)

e) Entities accounted for using the equity method - - - (2.225) (2.225)

f) Other adjustments - - - - -
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE PARENT COMPANY 774.587 1.396.441 (11.099) 703.864 2.863.793
MINORITY INTERESTS - - - 340.343 340.343
1. Other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity - - - (10.553) (10.553)
2. Other - - - 350.896 350.896
TOTAL NET EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2.728.325 7.415.649 263.434 4.071.969 14.479.377

(*) Presented solely and exclusively for comparison purposes.




GRUPO CATALANA OCCIDENTE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Grupo Catalana Occidente)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE FOR FINANCIAL YEARS ENDING 31
DECEMBER 2019 AND 2018 (Notes 1 to 3)

(Figures in Thousands of Euros)

Note Year 2018 (*) Year 2019

A) CONSOLIDATED PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD 386.422 424.530

B) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - ITEMS NOT RECLASSIFIED IN THE

PROFIT (5.301) (19.492)

1. Actuarial Gains/(losses) on long term remuneration to personnel 15 (9.350) (24.777)

2. Share in other comprehensive income recognised by - -
investments in joint ventures and associates

3. Other income and expenses not reclassified in the profit for the period

4. Tax effect 11.d. 4.049 5.285

C) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - ITEMS THAT CAN BE RECLASSIFIED

AFTER THE PROFIT (136.173) 366.873

1. Available-for-sale financial assets (200.595) 607.196

a) Valuation gains/(losses) 7.a. (201.951) 587.170
b) Amounts transferred to the income statement 1.356 20.026
c) Other reclassifications - -

2. Cash flow hedges: - -

a) Valuation gains/(losses) - -
b) Amounts transferred to the income statement - -
c) Amounts transferred to the initial carrying amount of hedged items - -
c) Other reclassifications - -

3. Hedges of net investments in foreign operations: - -

a) Valuation gains/(losses) - -
b) Amounts transferred to the income statement - -
c) Other reclassifications - -

4. Exchange differences: (2.480) 10.969

a) Valuation gains/(losses) (2.480) 10.969
b) Amounts transferred to the income statement - -
c) Other reclassifications - -

5. Correction of accounting mismatches: 25.578 (152.029)

a) Valuation gains/(losses) 25.578 (152.029)
b) Amounts transferred to the income statement - -
c) Other reclassifications - -

6. Assets held for sale: - -

a) Valuation gains/(losses) - -
b) Amounts transferred to the income statement - -
c) Other reclassifications - -

7. Share in other comprehensive income recognised by (3.773) 1438

investments in joint ventures and associates
a) Valuation gains/(losses) 8 (3.773) 1.438
b) Amounts transferred to the income statement - -
c) Other reclassifications - -

8. Other income and expenses that can be reclassified
after the profit for the period
9. Tax effect 11.d. 45.097 (100.701)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (A + B + C) 244,948 771.911

a) Attributable to equity holders of the parent 219.789 722.895

b) Attributable to minority interests 25.159 49.016

(*) Presented solely and exclusively for comparison purposes.
The accompanying Notes 1 to 22 and Appendices | and Il are an integral part of the consolidated Statement of Recognised Income and Expenses
for the year 2019.




GRUPO CATALANA OCCIDENTE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Grupo Catalana Occidente)

CONSOLIDATED CHANGES IN EQUITY STATEMENT FOR

THE FINANCIAL YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 AND 2018 (notes 1 to 3)

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent company

(Figures in Thousands of Euros)

Equity Other
_ comprehens L
Capital o Share Treasury Profit for the ive income | Minority Total net
Note mputual premium shares and |year attributable| (Interim and Interests equity
fund and part|C|!oat|on to the parent Dividends) |5ccumulated
Reserves units company in equity

Closing balance at 31 December 2017 (*) 36.000 1.876.510 (18.108) 325.447 (34.560) 567.322 325.993 3.078.604
Adjustment for changes in accounting policies - - - - - - - -
Adjustment for errors - - - - - - - -
Opening balance adjusted to 01 January 2018 (*) 36.000 1.876.510 (18.108) 325.447 (34.560) 567.322 325.993 3.078.604
|. Total recognised income/(expenses) - (4.112) - 352.160 - (128.259) 25.159 244.948
Il. Transactions with members or shareholders - - (4.151) - (94.740) - (10.778) (109.669)
1. Capital increases/(decreases) - - - - - - - -

2. Conversion of financial liabilities into equity - - - - - - - -

3. Dividend distribution - - - - (94.740) - (20.778) (105.518)

4. Transactions with treasury shares or holdings (net) 16.c. - - (4.151) - - - - (4.151)

5. Increases (decreases) due to business combinations - - - - - - - -

6. Other transactions with members or shareholders - - - - - - - -

lll. Other changes in equity - 222.719 - (325.447) 93.012 - (31) (9.747)
1. Share-based payments - - - - - - - -

2. Transfers between equity components - 232.435 - (325.447) 93.012 - - -

3. Other changes - (9.716) - - - - (31) (9.747)
Closing balance at 31 December 2018 (*) 36.000 2.095.117 (22.259) 352.160 (36.288) 439.063 340.343 3.204.136
Adjustment for changes in accounting policies - - - - - - - -
Adjustment for errors - - - - - - - -
Opening balance adjusted to 01 January 2019 36.000 2.095.117 (22.259) 352.160 (36.288) 439.063 340.343 3.204.136
I. Total recognised income/(expenses) - (16.771) - 385.937 - 353.729 49.016 771.911
Il. Transactions with members or shareholders - - 259 - (100.512) - (14.915) (115.168)
1. Capital increases/(decreases) - - - - - - - -

2. Conversion of financial liabilities into equity - - - - - - - -

3. Dividend distribution 16.e. - - - - (100.512) - (14.915) (115.427)

4. Transactions with treasury shares or holdings (net) 16.c. - - 259 - - - - 259

5. Increases (decreases) due to business combinations - - - - - - - -

6. Other transactions with members or shareholders - - - - - - - -

lll. Other changes in equity - 244.181 - (352.160) 98.688 - (405) (9.696)
1. Share-based payments - - - - - - - -

2. Transfers between equity components 16.d. - 253.472 - (352.160) 98.688 - - -

3. Other changes - (9.291) - - - - (405) (9.696)
Closing balance at 31 December 2019 36.000 2.322.527 (22.000) 385.937 (38.112) 792.792 374.039 3.851.183

(*) Presented solely and exclusively for comparison purposes.

The accompanying Notes 1 to 22 and Appendices | and Il are an integral part of the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity at 31 December 2019.




GRUPO CATALANA OCCIDENTE, S.A. AND SUBSIDIARIES
(Grupo Catalana Occidente)

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEARS
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 AND 2018 (DIRECT METHOD) (Notes 1 to 3)

(Figures in Thousands of Euros)

Note Year 2018 (*) Year 2019

A) CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (1+2+3) 486.461 513.462

1. Insurance activities: 853.416 905.091

(+) Cash received from insurance activities 5.150.347 5.428.597

(-) Cash paid in insurance activities (4.296.931) (4.523.506)

2. Other operating activities: (261.475) (233.635)

(+) Cash received from other operating activities 509.758 586.890

(-) Cash paid in other operating activities (771.233) (820.525)

3. Income tax refunded/(paid) (105.480) (157.994)

B) CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1 + 2) (467.926) (177.499)

1. Cash received from investing activities: 2.236.916 3.079.468

(+) Property, plant and equipment 860 555

(+) Investment property 23.829 12.279

(+) Intangible assets - -

(+) Financial instruments 1.696.065 2.596.692

(+) Investments in equity instruments - -

(+) Subsidiaries and other business units - -

(+) Interest received 270.670 188.929

(+) Dividends received 47.842 53.037

(+) Other cash received in relation to investing activities 197.650 227.976

2. Payments from investment activities: (2.704.842) (3.256.967)

(-) Property, plant and equipment 9.a. (32.405) (26.964)

(-) Investment property 9.h. (63.886) (110.433)

(-) Intangible assets 10 (55.207) (52.504)

(-) Financial instruments (2.177.786) (2.622.802)

(-) Investments in equity instruments - -

(-) Subsidiaries and other business units 8 (97.426) (159.554)

(-) Other cash paid in relation to investing activities (278.132) (284.710)

C) CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (1 + 2) (111.238) (144.415)

1. Cash received from financing activities: 202 259

(+) Subordinated liabilities - -

(+) Cash received from issue of equity instruments and capital increase - -

(+) Assessments received and contributions from members or mutual members - -

(+) Disposal of treasury shares 16.c. 202 259

(+) Other cash received in relation to financing activities - -

2. Cash paid in investing activities: (111.440) (144.674)

(-) Dividends to shareholders 16.e. (94.740) (100.512)

(-) Interest paid (12.347) (14.526)

(-) Subordinated liabilities - -

(-) Cash paid for return of contributions to shareholders - -

(-) Assessments paid and return of contributions to members or mutual members - -

(-) Purchase of own securities 16.c. (4.353) -

(-) Other cash paid in relation to financing activities - (29.636)

D) EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATES 39 (339)

E) NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B + C + D) (92.664) 191.209

F) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE START OF THE PERIOD 1.256.195 1.163.531

G) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD (E+F) 1.163.531 1.354.740
COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD Year 2018 (*) Year 2019

(+) Cash 1.160.221 1.154.843

(+) Other financial assets 3.310 199.897

(-) Less : Bank overdrafts repayable on demand - -

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 1.163.531 1.354.740

(*) Presented solely and exclusively for comparison purposes.
The accompanying Notes 1 to 22 and Appendices | and Il are an integral part of the consolidated Cash Flow Statement
for the year 2019.
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Grupo Catalana Occidente, S.A.
and Subsidiaries

(Grupo Catalana Occidente)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Financial Year Ended

on 31 December 2019

In accordance with current legislation on the content of consolidated financial statements, these Notes
complete, elaborate on and provide a commentary on the consolidated balance sheet, profit and loss
account, statement of recognised income and expense, statement of changes in equity and cash flow
statement (hereinafter the “consolidated financial statements”). Together with the financial
statements, they form a whole, whose purpose is to provide a true and fair view of the consolidated
assets and consolidated financial position of Grupo Catalana Occidente at 31 December 2019 and of the
result of its activities, the changes in its equity and the cash flows registered in the year then ended.

General information on the parent company and its activities

1.a) Incorporation, term and domicile

Grupo Catalana Occidente, Sociedad Anénima (“the parent company”) was incorporated for an
indefinite period on 18 July 1864, in Spain and initially under the name “La Catalana, Sociedad de
Seguros contra Incendios a Prima Fija”. In 1988 it changed its name to Catalana Occidente, Sociedad
Anénima de Seguros y Reaseguros, and again in 2001 to Grupo Catalana Occidente, Sociedad
Anénima, to reflect the change in its corporate activities following the transfer of all its insurance and
reinsurance business to the subsidiary Seguros Catalana Occidente, Sociedad Anénima de Seguros y
Reaseguros (“Seguros Catalana Occidente”) through a non-cash contribution consisting of the entire
business line, including all the assets and liabilities allocated to it and all its staff.

The registered office of the parent company is at Paseo de la Castellana 4, Madrid (Spain).

1.b) Corporate purpose, legal framework and lines of business in which the Company
operates

The Company’s corporate purpose is to purchase, underwrite, hold, administer, swap and sell all
manner of domestic and foreign securities and shares, for its own account and without engaging in
brokerage activities, for the purpose of directing, administering and managing such securities and
shares.

In carrying out these activities, especially as regards the securities of insurance undertakings and
other companies whose activities are subject to the private insurance regulations in Spain, the parent
company ensures that applicable legal requirements are met. The parent company is not directly
involved in insurance activity, this is performed by subsidiary companies of the Group which have
the corresponding legal authority. The Directorate General of Insurance and Pension Funds
(hereinafter “DGSFP”) performs the functions assigned under current legislation by the Spanish
Ministry of Economy and Finance in relation to private insurance and reinsurance, insurance agency
and brokerage services, capitalisation and pension funds.

The parent company directs and manages its capital investment in the other companies by organising
human and material resources.

The insurance companies belonging to Grupo Catalana Occidente, S.A. operate in the following
business lines: Life, Credit, Bonding, Accident, Sickness, Health, Motor, Marine, Lake and River
Transportation (hull), Aircraft, Freight, Fire and Natural Disasters, Other damage to property
(combined Agricultural Insurance, Theft and other), Liability (in Motor, aircraft, marine, inland



transportation, arising from nuclear or other risks), various monetary Losses, Legal Defence,
Assistance and Funeral. The Group considers all of the branches it operates in to be traditional
business except for the branches of Credit and Bonding, which is included within the credit insurance
business.

Furthermore, the subsidiary companies GCO Gestora de Pensiones, E.G.F.P, S.A. (‘GCO Gestora de
Pensiones’) and Plus Ultra Seguros Generales y Vida, S.A. de Seguros y Reaseguros (‘Plus Ultra’)

"o

manage the pension funds "GCO Pensiones Mixto Fijo, Fondo de pensiones", “GCO Pensiones Renta

n on n o«

Variable, Fondo de pensiones”, "GCO Pensiones Renta Fija, Fondo de pensiones”, “GCO Pensiones
Empleados, Fondo de Pensiones”, “GCO Pensiones Colectivo, Fondo de Pensiones”, “Cat Previsio,
Fondo de Pensiones”, “Plus Ultra Renta Fija, Fondo de Pensiones”, “Plus Ultra Dinamico, Fondo de
Pensiones”, “Plus Ultra Mixto, Fondo de Pensiones”, “Plus Ultra Renta Variable, Fondo de Pensiones”
and “Plus Ultra Renta Fija Mixta, Fondo de Pensiones”. In addition, Seguros Catalana Occidente y
Bilbao Compafiia Anénima de Seguros y Reaseguros, S.A. (‘Seguros Bilbao’) son socios promotores de
“GCO Previsién, EPSV Individual”. The total amount of assets of managed funds and EPSV amounted
to 662,934 thousand euros at 31 December 2019 (527,509 thousand euros at 31 December 2018). The
gross income earned from management fees of the various funds amounted to €4,608 thousand in
2019 (€£4,060 thousand in 2018) and was recognised, net of the related marketing expenses, under
"Other Technical Income" in the consolidated life insurance profit and loss account.

Also, the subsidiary company Grupo Catalana Occidente Gestion de Activos, S.G.LLC. ("GCO Gestién de
Activos) manages mutual funds “GCO Mixto, FI”, “GCO Acciones, FI", “GCO Eurobolsa, FI”, “GCO Renta
Fija, FI”, “GCO Global 50, FI", “GCO Internacional, FI” and “GCO Ahorro, FI" (previouslt called “GCO
Corto Plazo, FI” (see Note 7.a.2). The total amount of assets of managed mutual funds amounted to
315,789 thousand euros at 31 December 2019 (270,658 thousand euros at 31 December 2018).

In view of the business activity carried out by the parent and its subsidiaries, the Group has no
environmental liabilities, expenses, assets, provisions or contingencies that might be material with
respect to the Group’s equity, financial position or results. Therefore, no specific disclosures are
included in these notes to the consolidated financial statements with respect to information regarding
environmental issues.

The non-financial information to be included in accordance with Law 11/2018, of 28 December, which
modifies the Code of Commerce, Consolidated Text of the Spanish Capital Companies Act and the
Account Auditing Act regarding non-financial information and diversity, which is included in the
consolidated management report for Grupo Catalana Occidente.

1.c) Group structure and distribution systems

The subsidiary companies Seguros Catalana Occidente, Seguros Bilbao, Plus Ultra, Nortehispana, de
Seguros v Reaseguros S. A. (‘Nortehispana’) and Atradius N.V., have their own independent structure
and organisational network.

From an organisational standpoint, the companies comprising Grupo Catalana Occidente (“the Group”)
have a structure involving centralised corporate functions and decentralised operations, with the
following service centres: claim centres with staff distributed between Sant Cugat, Valencia, Madrid,
Malaga and Santander, and call centres with staff distributed between Sant Cugat and Madrid.

The Group has a territorial structure comprising 1,529 offices spread across Spain and 83 offices
abroad.

To deliver personal and high-quality advice to customers, the Group distributes its products in Spain
through an extensive sales network, consisting mainly of exclusive, full-time insurance agents. The
Group also uses insurance brokers, part-time agents and other specialist distribution networks. On 31
December 2019 the Group worked with a total of 17,327 agents throughout Spain (17,801 at 31
December 2018).

The Group operates in more than 50 countries through the subsidiary Atradius N.V., which at 31
December 2019 had 2,539 brokers (2,601 at 31 December 2018).



With regards to the brokerage channels, according to Act 26/2006 de Mediacién de Seguros y
Reaseguros Privados (Act 26/2006 on private insurance and reinsurance brokerage), and by virtue of
the application of its stipulations in its second additional provision, all current agency agreements are
deemed to be exclusive insurance agency agreements. In this way, the following subsidiary
companies act as exclusive agency companies:

e Tecniseguros, Sociedad de Agencia de Seguros, S.A. as an agency of Seguros Catalana
Occidente.

e  S.Orbita, Sociedad Agencia de Seguros, S.A. as an insurance agency in Bilbao.

e Previsora Bilbaina Agencia de Seguros, S.A. and Nortehispana Mediacién Agencia de
Seguros, S.A. as Nortehispana agencies.

1.d) Other information

All of the parent company'’s shares are listed on the Spanish Stock Exchange Interconnection System
(Continuous Market). At 31 December 2019, the shares traded at €31.15 per share (€32.65 per share at
31 December 2018).

2. Basis of presentation for consolidated accounts

2.a) Regulatory framework of financial reporting applicable to the Group

These consolidated financial statements have been produced by the Board Members of the parent
company in accordance with the financial reporting regulatory framework applicable to the Group,
which is established by:

a) The Spanish Code of Commerce and other commercial legislation.

b) The International Financial Reporting Standards (hereinafter, “IFRS”) as adopted by the
European Union through EU Regulations, pursuant to Regulation (EU) no. 1606/2002 of
the European Parliament and of the Council of 19 July 2002 and subsequent
amendments thereto.

¢) Roval Decree 1060/2015, of 20 November, on Organisation, Supervision and Solvency of
Insurance and Reinsurance Entities (hereinafter, “ROSSEAR"), as well as the valid
articles of Royal Decree 2486/1998, of 20 November, which approves the Regulation on
Organisation and Supervision of Insurance (hereinafter, “ROSSP”), and the regulatory
provisions established by the Directorate General of Insurance and Pension Funds, as
well as the criteria and regulations established by the local regulators in the various
countries of the foreign subsidiary companies of the Group.

d) Act 20/2015, of 14 July, on Organisation, Supervision and Solvency of Insurance and
Reinsurance Entities (hereinafter, “LOSSEAR").

2.b) True and Fair View

The Group's consolidated financial statements have been obtained from the accounting records of the
parent Company and its subsidiaries and are presented in accordance with the financial reporting
regulatory framework applicable and in particular the accounting principles and criteria it contains.
Therefore they present a true reflection of the equity, financial position, results of the Group and cash
flows for the year concerned. These consolidated financial statements were prepared by the Board of
Directors of Grupo Catalana Occidente, S.A. at their meeting on 27 February 2020, and shall be subject,
as well as those from investee companies, to the approval by the respective Annual General Meeting of



Shareholders. The 2018 consolidated annual financial statements were approved by the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders of the Grupo Catalana Occidente, S.A. which was held on 25 April
2019.

The Group's consolidated financial statements have been prepared from accounting records
maintained by the parent and the other companies of the Group and include certain adjustments and
reclassifications to standardise the principles and criteria used by the various companies integrated
into Grupo Catalana Occidente.

As recommended by IAS 1, assets and liabilities are generally classified in the balance sheet according
to their liquidity, but not by classifying assets and liabilities as current or non-current, which is more
relevant for the purposes of insurance groups. As with other insurance groups, expenses in the profit
and loss account are classified and presented according to their nature.

2.c)  Responsibility for information

The information in these financial statements is the responsibility of the Board Members of the parent
Company, who have taken due care to ensure the effective operation of the various controls put in
place to guarantee the quality of financial and accounting information, both for the parent and the
companies of the Group.

In preparing the financial statements, judgements and estimates were occasionally made by the
management of the Parent company and of the consolidated companies, which were subsequently
ratified by the directors, and these judgements and estimates relate, inter alia, to

e The fair value and impairment losses of certain unlisted financial assets (Notes 3-b.3 and
3-b.4)

e The assumptions and hypotheses included in the calculation of the technical lifetime
provisions (Note 3.j.2).

e The assumptions and hypotheses included in the calculation and model used for the
valuation of non-life technical provisions determined by statistical methods (Note 3.j.2).

e The assumptions and hypotheses included in the calculation of the technical provisions
for the credit line (Note 3.j.2).

e The useful life of the property, plant and equipment and investment property (Notes 3-c
and 3-d) and intangible assets (Note 3.e)

e The determination of the recoverable amount of goodwill on consolidation and other
intangible assets with a definite and indefinite useful life (see Note 3-e)

e The actuarial assumptions used to calculate the pension liabilities and obligations (Note
3k1).

e The assumptions and hypotheses used in the calculation of the liability adequacy test
(Note 3,j.2)

e The assumptions included in the calculation of the provisional premiums estimated at
closure derived from the credit and surety business(Note 3.m.1).

e The determination of the discount rate used in the calculation of the financial liability
arising from leases subject to IFRS 16 (Note 3-c.2)

These estimates affect both the amounts recorded in the balance sheet and profit and loss account and
those appearing in t